Public Document Pack

BOStOn Borough COUﬂCI| Municipal Buildings
Boston
. . Lincolnshire PE21 8QR
Chief Executive Tel: 01205 314200
Rob Barlow

Friday 4 July 2025

Notice of meeting of the Licensing Sub-Committee

Dear Councillor
You are invited to attend a meeting of the Licensing Sub-Committee

on Monday 14th July 2025 at 10.00 am
in the Committee Room - Municipal Buildings, West Street, Boston, PE21 8QR

Rob Barlow
Chief Executive

Membership:
Panel: Councillors Stuart Evans, Paul Gleeson and Lina Savickiene
Substitute: Councillor John Baxter

Members of the public are welcome to attend the committee meeting as observers except
during the consideration of exempt or confidential items.

This meeting may be subject to being recorded.

Agenda
Part | - Preliminaries
A  Election of Chairman
B  Apologies for Absence
To receive apologies for absence.
C Declarations of Interest

To receive declarations of interests in respect of any item on the agenda.



Part Il - Agenda Items
1 Star Market, 5-9 New Street, Boston (Pages 1-72)

(A report by Anna McDowell, Senior Licensing Officer)

Notes:

Please contact Democratic Services (demservices@boston.gov.uk) if you have any queries
about the agenda and documents for this meeting.

Council Members who are not able to attend the meeting should notify Democratic Services as
soon as possible.

Alternative Versions

Should you wish to have the agenda or report in an alternative format such as larger text, Braille
or a specific language, please telephone 01205 314591.

The procedures for the hearing appear overleaf.


mailto:demservices@boston.gov.uk

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

Licensing Hearing Procedure

Licensing Hearing Procedure

The Sub-Committee deals with the Preliminaries.

The Applicant, Senior Licensing Officer and responsible authorities are invited into the
room.

The Chairman invites introductions.
The Legal Advisor explains the procedures.
The Senior Licensing Officer presents her report.

Members of the Sub-Committee ask any questions of the Senior Licensing Officer in
respect of the information they have received.

The Responsible Authorities are invited to address the Sub-Committee to present their
case.

Members of the Sub-Committee ask questions of the Responsible Authorities.
The Applicant is invited to address the Sub-Committee to present their case.
Members of the Sub-Committee ask questions of the Applicant.

If required, Members of the Sub-Committee may then ask further questions of the Senior
Licensing Officer, the Applicant and the Responsible Authorities in respect of the report.

The Chairman asks the Legal Advisor whether there are any other matters to be raised or
resolved before the Sub-Committee retires to begin its deliberations.

The Chairman advises that the Members of the Sub-Committee will consider the report in
private and make their decision. The Legal Representative will remain with them, but will at
no point take part in the deliberations; the Legal Representative will give legal advice if
required and the decision notice will contain details of this advice.

The Applicant, the Responsible Authorities and the Senior Licensing Officer are escorted
from the room.

Once a decision has been made the decision and the reasons for the decision will be
formally notified in writing by the Senior Licensing Officer within 5 working days.



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 1

Report To: Licensing Sub — Committee

Date: Tuesday 14 July 2025 at 10.00am

Subject: Star Market, 5-9 New Street, Boston

Purpose: To determine two Temporary Event Notices following the
submission of objections by the Chief Officer of Lincolnshire
Police

Key Decision: No

Portfolio Holder: Councillor Dale Broughton, Deputy Leader

Report Of: Christian Allen, Assistant Director — Regulatory

Report Author: Anna M¢Dowell, Senior Licensing Officer

Ward(s) Affected: Central

Exempt Report: No

Summary

To consider two Temporary Event Notices following objections to the notices from the
Chief Officer of Lincolnshire Police.

Recommendations

It is recommended that the Sub - Committee determine the Temporary Event Notices, in
accordance with the Licensing Act 2003 and, having regard to the objection notices and
any evidence submitted by the applicant, take such steps as considered appropriate for
the promotion of the licensing objectives. The steps available to the Sub-Committee are
summarised in the body of the report.

Reasons for Recommendations

The Licensing Act 2003 requires that the Licensing Sub - Committee make a
determination in accordance with Section 105 of the Licensing Act 2003 where an
objection notice is submitted under S104 of that Act.

Page 1



Other Options Considered

None

1. Background

1.1  Temporary event notices are a light touch regime to allow for the provision of
occasional events where licensable activities are to be provided. A Temporary
Event Notice (referred to from hereon in as “Notice”) indicates that a premises will
be used for licensable activities during the period identified in the Notice.

A Notice can be used to authorise licensable activities:

at a premises that does not benefit from a Premises Licence

beyond the usual hours permitted by a Premises Licence

in addition to the activities permitted by a Premises Licence

where a person who is not the Premises Licence holder wishes to provide
those activities at a licensed premises.

1.2 Under the provisions of the Act only the Police or Environmental Health may object
to a Notice and any such objections must be submitted by the end of the third
working day following the date on which they receive the Notice.

1.3  An objection may only be submitted if the Police or Environmental Health are
satisfied that to allow the premises to be used in accordance with the Notice would
undermine one or more of the licensing objectives. The Licensing Objectives are:

The prevention of crime and disorder
Public safety

The prevention of public nuisance
The protection of children from harm

1.4  In accordance with the Licensing Act 2003 Section 105 (2) (a) the licensing
authority must hold a hearing to consider the objection notice, unless all parties
agree a hearing is not necessary.

2. Report

2.1 The Premises and the Notices

2.1.1 Star Market is a convenience store in Boston Town Centre and is located at 5-9
New Street, Boston. The location is in a predominantly commercial area of the
town. A location plan is attached at appendix 1.

2.1.2 The premises sits within an area designated under a Public Space Protection
Order. The Order is in place to restrict consumption of alcohol within that area. A
copy of the Public Space Protection Order is attached at appendix 2.

2.1.3 The premises does not currently benefit from a premises licence. However, at the

time of writing this report it was understood that the applicant intends to apply for a
licence imminently.

Page 2



2.1.4 On 01 July 2025, two Notices were submitted by Se & Se Consultancy Ltd on
behalf of Demirci Ridvan. The Notices were to allow the premises to be used for the
sale by retail of alcohol for consumption off the premises.

The Notices are to be in effect from 08.00 hours until 23.00 hours daily between
Friday 18 July and Thursday 24™ July 2025 and 08.00 hours and 23.00 hours daily
between Monday 28™ July and Sunday 03 August 2025. A copy of the Notices is
attached at appendix 3.

2.1.5 On 04 July 2025 objections to both Notices were submitted by the Chief Officer of
Lincolnshire Police on the grounds that they were satisfied that allowing the
premises to be used in accordance with the Notices would undermine all four
licensing objectives. The basis behind the objection being that with no provision to
impose suitable conditions relating to alcohol sales within the PSPO area, the
applicant cannot demonstrate that the objectives will be promoted. A copy of the
objection notices is attached at appendix 4.

2.2 Options

2.2.1 The Licensing Sub-Committee cannot modify the Notices in any way, for example
reduce the hours of the Notice; only the Police, Environmental Health and the
premises user can agree to modify a Notice. As no such agreement has been
made, it must be determined in its original format.

2.2.2 The Licensing Sub-Committee can only impose conditions on a Notice where those
conditions are already in effect by way of a Premises Licence. As no such licence is
in force for Star Market, the Sub-Committee cannot determine to allow the Notice
subject to imposed or agreed conditions.

2.2.2 The options available to the Sub-Committee are prescribed by virtue of Section 105
of the Licensing Act 2003:

¢ |If the Licensing Sub-Committee are satisfied that the licensing objectives will
be promoted as the Notices stand, they must take no action and permit the
activities in the manner described in the Notices.

¢ If the Licensing Sub-Committee are satisfied that the licensing objectives will
be undermined as the Notices stand, they can issue a counter notice
preventing the events from going ahead. If this is the determination made by
the Sub-Committee a decision notice giving full reasons for the
determination must also be issued.

2.3 Considerations

2.3.1 The Sub - Committee must consider the Notices given by Mr Ridvan and the
objection notices given by Lincolnshire Police. Having regard to the licensable
activities to be authorised by the Notices, and the objection notices received, the
Sub-Committee must make a decision which is appropriate for the promotion of the
licensing objectives.

Page 3



2.3.2

2.3.3

2.4

24.1

2.4.2

2.5

3.1

3.2

In making a determination the licensing authority must give appropriate weight to:

e The Section 182 Guidance made under the Act of which a copy of the
relevant sections is attached at appendix 5.

e The Licensing Authority’s Licensing Policy Statement a copy of the relevant
sections is attached at appendix 6.

The Local Authority must fulfil its obligations under section 17 of the Crime and
Disorder Act 1998 when carrying out their function as a Licensing Authority.

Section 17 places a duty on the Local Authority to do all it reasonably can to prevent
crime and disorder in their area. The possible crime and disorder implications are
relevant factors in the consideration of temporary event notices where a Police
objection has been made. In giving “due regard” to these possible implications the
Licensing Sub-Committee must consider and weigh up all the information made
available at the hearing and the submissions made by the Police and the premises
user.

Human Rights & Equalities

In considering the Notices and objections the Licensing Sub-Committee should be
aware of and take into account any implications that may arise from the Human
Rights Act 1998. Under the Human Rights Act it is unlawful for a public authority to
act in a manner which is incompatible with the European Convention on Human
Rights.

The Licensing Sub-Committee, in its decision making, must have due regard to its
public sector equality duty under section 149 of the Equality Act 2010. A copy of
section 149 of the Act is attached at appendix 7.

Appeal

The premises user and the Police may appeal the decision made by the Licensing
Sub-Committee, regarding the Notices, to the Magistrates Court. However, the
decision takes immediate effect.

Any appeal must be made within 21 days of the day on which all parties were
notified, in writing by the Licensing Authority, of the decision to be appealed against.
No appeal may be brought later than 5 working days before the day on which the
event period specified in the Temporary Event Notices begins.

Conclusion

The Sub-Committee must come to its determination based on an assessment of the
evidence of both the risks and benefits either for or against allowing the Notices.

When considering the evidence, the Sub-Committee must satisfy themselves

whether or not the licensing objectives would be promoted as the Notices stand.
The Sub-Committee must have regard to evidence, not speculation.

Page 4



3.3

3.4

3.5

The Sub-Committee should seek to focus the hearing on the relevant parts of
objections only and avoid straying into undisputed areas. Any matter which is not
about the likely effect of the Notices on the promotion of the licensing objectives is
not relevant and therefore cannot be considered.

The Sub-Committee must give full reasons for its decision.

In making its’ determination, the Sub-Committee must evidence that they have had
due regard for all that they have read and heard, to the Licensing Authority’s
Statement of Licensing Policy, the guidance issued under Section 182 of the
Licensing Act 2003, and their public sector duty under Section 149 of the Equality
Act 2010.

Implications

South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership

None

Corporate Priorities

None

Staffing

None

Workforce Capacity Implications

None

Constitutional and Legal Implications

The legal implications are detailed in within the report.

Data Protection

Certain appendices to the report have been redacted to remove personal data.

Financial

None

Risk Management

There is a risk that the Council’s reputation could be damaged if licensing legislation and
guidance are not upheld and applied appropriately.

Stakeholder / Consultation / Timescales

None

Page 5



Reputation

There is a risk that the Council’s reputation could be damaged if licensing legislation and
guidance are not upheld and applied appropriately.

Contracts

None

Crime and Disorder

The Council has a duty to promote the Licensing Objectives.
Equality and Diversity/ Human Rights/ Safeguarding

Equality Implications: The licensing authority must have due regard to its public sector
equality duty under section 149 of the Equality Act 2010.

Human Rights: Under the Human Rights Act it is unlawful for a public authority to act in a
manner that is incompatible with the European Convention on Human Rights.

Safeguarding Implications: The Council has a duty to protect the public and promote the
four licensing objectives of the prevention of crime and disorder, public safety, the
prevention of public nuisance and the protection of children from harm within the Borough
that is consistent with prevailing national guidance and standards.

Health and Wellbeing

None

Climate Change and Environment Impact Assessment

None

Acronyms

None

Appendices

Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report:

Appendix 1 Location Plan

Appendix 2 Public Space Protection Order

Appendix 3 Aand B Temporary Event Notices x 2

Appendix 4 A and B Lincolnshire Police Objection Notices x 2
Appendix 5 Section 182 Guidance extracts
Appendix 6 Statement of Licensing Policy Extracts
Appendix 7 Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010

Page 6



Background Papers
None
Report Approval

Report author: Anna M¢Dowell, Senior Licensing Officer
anna.mcdowell@boston.gov.uk

Signed off by: Christian Allen, Assistant Director — Regulatory
christian.allen@boston.gov.uk

Approved for publication: Christian Allen, Assistant Director — Regulatory
christian.allen@boston.gov.uk

Page 7


mailto:anna.mcdowell@boston.gov.uk
mailto:christian.allen@boston.gov.uk
mailto:christian.allen@boston.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Car Park

The

Old
| Vicarage

Bt Botolph's Church

Childrens
Nursery

Sessions

House

Car Park

Boston
Library

Ingram’s

Monument

Centenary
Methodist
Church

El Sub Sta

Car Park

Bar Gate

(siteof) ,*

Simple A4 Portrait 1:1,250 Scale

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 100m

© Crown copyright. All rights reserved 100024661 2025

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 2

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 3A

Boston

23, 4 b o) g

Temporary Event Notice
Licensing Act 2003

For help conlact

ligensingeboston.gov.uk
Telephone: 01205 314235

==-—————
* required Informatien

Section 10f9

You can save the form al any time and resume It later. You do not need to be logged in when you resume.

System reference

Your reference

Not Currently InUse

TEN1 5-9 New Street Boston Lincolnshire
PE21 6LP

Are you an agent acting on behalf of the applicant?

@ Yes Q)

Applicant Details
*First name

*Family name

* E-mail

Main telephone number

Other telephone number

[J Indicate here if the applicant would prefer not to be conlacted by telephone

Is the applicant:
(* Applying as a business

No

IRIdvan

l

Demirci

|

|

or organisation, Including as a sole trader

" Applying as an individual

Applicant Business

Is the applicant's business
registered In the UK with
Companies House?

Is the applicant's business
registered outside the UK?

Buslness name

' Ves No

O Yes

ra Nn

|

L

VAT number

This Is the unique reference for this
application generated by the system.

You can put whal you want here to help you
track appllcatlons if you make lots of them. It
is passed lo the authority.

Put "no" if you are applying on your own
behalf or on behalf of a business you own or
work for.

Include country code.

Asole trader s a business owned by one
person without any speclal legal structure.
Applying as an Individual means the
applicant Is applylng so the applicant can be
employed, or for some other personal reason,
such as following a hobby.

Note: completing the Applicant Business
section is optional in this form.

If the applicant's business Is registered, use
its registered name.

Put "none" If the applicant Is not registered
for VAT.

2 Crown copyright

Page 13



Continued from previous page...

Legal status Please select...

Applicant's position in the
business

Home country United Kingdom

Applicant Business Address

Building number or name

Street

Clty or town

|

|
District [

|

|

County or administrative area

|
|
|
|

Postcode |_

Country IUnited Kingdom

Agent Details

* First name [Serhan

* Family name |Senyurek

*E-mall

licensinghub@seandse.co.uk

Malin telephone number

Other telephone number

[] Indicate here if you would prefer not to be contacted by telephone

Are you:

@ Anagent that is a business or organisation, including a sole trader

( Aprlivate individual acting as an agent

Agent Business

No

Is your business registeredin @ Yes
the UK with Companies

House?

Registration number 11745429

Business name

Se & Se Consultancy Ltd.

VAT number

Legal status

Private Limited Company

The country where the applicant's
headquarters are,

If the applicant has one, this should be the
applicant's official address - that Is an
address required of the applicant by law for
receiving communicatlons.

Include country code.

A sole trader s a business owned by one
person without any special legal structure.,

Note: completing the Applicant Business
sectlon Is optional In this form.

If your business Is registered, use its
registered name.

Put "none" if you are not registered for VAT.

“ Crown copyright

Page 14




Continued from previous page...

Your position in the business |Director

Home country Uniled Kingdom

The country where the headquarters of your
business is located.

Agent Registered Address

Address registered with Companies House.

Building humber or name

Street

District

City or town

County or administrative area

Postcode

Country

Section 2 0f9

Have you had any previous or maiden names?
O Yes @ No

* Your date of birth

Applicant must be 18 years of age or older

National Insurance humber

J [his box need not be completed if you are an
individual not liable to pay UK national
insurance.

Place of birth

|

Correspondence Address
Is the address the same as (or similar to) the address given in section one?

C Yes @ No

If “Yes" Is selected you can re-use the detalls
from section one, or amend them as
required. Select “No” to enter a completely
new set of details.

Building number or name

Street

District

Clty or town

County or administrative area

Postcode

Country

2 Crown copyright

Page 15




Continued from previous page...

Additional Contact Details

Are the contact detalls the same as (or similar to) those given In sectlon one?  If “Yes" Is selected you can re-use the details
from sectlon one, or amend them as
O Yes & No required. Select "No" to enter a completely
new set of details.

E-mall

Telephone number ]

Other telephone number

Section 3 0of 9
THE PREMISES

|, the proposed user, hereby give notice under section 100 of the Licensing Act 2003 of my proposal to carry out a temporary
activity at the premises described below.

Glve the address of the premises where you intend to carry on the licensable activitles or if it has no address give a detalled
description (including the Ordnance Survey references). (See also guldance on completing the form, note 2)

* Does the premises have an address?

@ VYes O No
Address
Is the address the same as (or similar to) the address given in section one? If "Yes" Is selected you can re-use the details
from section one, or amend them as
O Yes @ No required. Select "No" to enter a completely

new set of detalls.

* Bullding number or name  |5-9

* Street |New St.
District |
* Clty or town |Boston

County or administrative area I

* Postcode [PE21 6LP ]

* Country |United Kingdom |

* Does a premises licence or club premises certificate have effect In relation
to the premises (or any part of the premises)?

@ Neither (O Premises licence (1 Club premises certlificate

Location Details

* Provide further detalls about the locatlon of the event

Whole premises(but event is for consumption off the premises)

If you Intend to use only part of the premises at this address or intend torestrict the area to which this notice applies, give a
description and detalls below (see also guidance on completing the form, note 3)

© Crown copyright

Page 16




Continued from previous page...

Describe the nature of the premises below (see also guidance on completing the form, note 4)

Off Licence

Describe the nature of the event below (see also gquidance on completing the form, nole §)

Sale of Alcohol off the premises and extension of opening hours

Section 4 of 9

LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES

State the licensable activities that you intend to carry on at the premises
(see also guidance on completing the form, note 6);

The sale by retall of alcohol

n The supply of alcohol by or on behalf of a club to, or to the order of, a
member of the club

[ The provision of regulated entertalnment (See also guidance on completing the form,
note 7)

[[] The provision of late night refreshment

[] The giving of a late temporary event notice Late notices can be given no later than 5

working days but no earlier than 9 working
days before the event,
(See also guldance on completing the form,

note B).

Event Dates

There must be a period of at least 10 working days between the date you submit this form and the date of the earliest event
when you will be using these premises for licensable activities.

State the dates on which you intend to use these premises for licensable activities

(see also guidance on completing the form, note 9)

Event start date | 18 | / | 07 ’ / L2025 I The maximum perlod for using premises for
P licensable activities under the authority of a
LU L temporary event notice Is 168 hours or seven
days.
Event end date | 24 | / ’07 | ” 2025 |
dd mm yyyy

2 Crawn copyright

Page 17




Continued from previous page...

State the times during the

event period that you propose fQ‘ = AT
to carry on licensable activities
(give times in 24 hour clock) Mgp-5afit 08:00-23:00
(see also guidance on

completing the form, note 10)

State the maximum number
of people at any one time that
you intend to allow to be

present at the premises

during the times when you Note that the maximum number of people
Intend to carry on licensable canhot exceed 499,

activities, including any staff,

organisers or performers

(see also guidance on

completing the form, note 11)

If the licensable activities will Include the supply of alcohol, state whether the
supplies will be for consumption on or off the premises, or both

(see also guldance on completing the form, hote 12):

@ Onthe premises only
(¢ Off the premises only
' Both

Section5 of 9

RELEVANT ENTERTAINMENT  (See also guidance on completing the form, note 13)

State if the licensable activities will Include the provision of relevant entertainment. If so, state the times during the event
period that you propose to provide relevant entertainment

Section 6 of 9

PERSONAL LICENCE HOLDERS (See also guidance on completing the form, note 14)

Do you currently hold a valid

: ' Yes No
personal licence? @ &

Provide the details of your personal licence below.
Issuing licensing authority
Licence number

Date of Issue

Any further relevant details

9D Crown copyright

Page 18




Continued from previous page...

Section 7 of 9

PREVIOUS TEMPORARY EVENT NOTICES (See also quidance on completing the form, note 15)

Have you previously given a

temporary event notice in

respect of any premises for

events falling in the same " Yes (¢ No
calendar year as the event for

which you are how glving this

temporary event notice?

Have you already glven a
temporary event notice for
the same premises in which
the event period:
a) Ends 24 hours or O Yes ¢ No
less before; or
b) Begins 24 hours or less
after the event perlod
proposed In this notice?

Section 8 of 9

ASSOCIATES AND BUSINESS COLLEAGUES (See also guidance on completing the form, note 16)

Has any associate of yours

glven a temporary event

notice for an event in the

same calendar year as the @ Yes C No
event for which you are now

glving a temporary event

notice?

State the total number of
temporary event notices your
associate(s) have given for
events In the same calendar
year

Has any associate of yours
already given a temporary
event notice for the same
premises in which the event
erlod:
; a) Ends 24 hours or O Yes @ No
less before; or
b) Begins 24 hours or less
after the event perlod
proposed in this notice?

£ Crown copyrighl

Page 19




Continued from previous page...

Has any person with whom
you are In business carrying
on licensable actlvities given a
tempaorary event notice for an
event in the same calendar
year as the event for which
you are now giving a
temporary event hotice?

O Yes & No

Has any person with whom
you are in business carrying
on licensable activities
already given a temporary
event notice for the same
premises in which the event
period:
a) Ends 24 hours or less
before; or
b) Begins 24 hours or less
after the event period
proposed in this notice?

C Yes & No

Section 9 of 9

CONDITION (See also quidance on completing the form, note 18)

It is a condition of this temporary event notice that where the relevant licensable activities described in Sections 4 and 5
above include the supply of alcohal that all such supplies are made by or under the authority of the premises user.

PAYMENT DETAILS

This fee must be paid to the authority. If you complete the application online, you must pay it by debit or credit card.

This formality requires a fixed fee of £21

DECLARATION (See also guidance on completing the form, note 19)

* The information contained In this form is correct to the best of my knowledge and belief

* |understand that it Is an offence:

, () to knowingly or recklessly make a false statement in connection with this temporary event notice and that a person Is
liable on summary conviction for any such offence to a fine of any amount: and

(ii) to permit an unauthorised activity to be carried on at any place and that a person is liable on summary conviction for
any such offence to a fine of any amount, or to imprisonment for a term not exceeding six (6) months, or both.

PRIVACY NOTICE We are required by law to protect your privacy and Inform you how your Information may be used. The
Licensing team collect your personal Information to process and manage your application Some of your information may
be made available on a publicly available register as required by relevant legislation. The information provided by you
may also be used for legitimate reasons by other departments of Boston Borough Council and other lawful agencies.

* These reasons may Include but are not limited to: prevention of crime, detection of fraud and public safety. In some cases
information relating to your applications may be requested under the Freedom of Information Act, this council will review
these requests to consider if it Is lawful to comply, The Councll takes your privacy seriously. The Councll is the Data
Controller for the purposes of the Data Protectlon Act 1998. If you want to know more about the information we have
about you, or the way we use your information please contact the Council.

X]  Ticking this box indicates you have read and understood the above declaration

This sectlon should be completed by the applicant, unless you answered "Yes" to the questlon "Are you an agent acting on
behalf of the applicant?”

2 Crown copyright

Page 20




Continued from previous page...

* Full name

Serhan Senyurek

* Capacity Agent e l
* Date [01 ]/ [o7] /] 2025 |

dd mm Yyyy

l ey A?i}islgotherslgnalory

Once you're finished you need to do the followIng:

1. Save this form to your computer by clicking file/save as...

2. Goback to hitps://www.gov.uk/apply-for-a-licence/temporary-event-notice/boston/apply-1 to upload this file and
continue with your application

Don't forget to make sure you have all your supporting documentation to hand

OFFICE USE ONLY

Applicant reference number iTEI\H 5-9 New Street Boston Lincolnshire PE2‘]

Fee paid [

Payment provider reference [

ELMS Payment Reference L

Payment status

Payment authorisation code

Payment authorisation date

|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|

Approval deadline

|
|
|
Date and time submitted |
|

Error message

Is Digitally signed O

1 23 2 K & 3 & 2 NS

* Crown copyright

Page 21




Page 22



APPENDIX 3B

01 JUL 2025
Boston For help contact
BOSTON Temporary Event N otice licensing@boston.gov.uk
e v | LicensingAct 2003 Telephone: 01205 314235

* required information

Section 1 of 9

You can save the form at any time and resume it later. You do not need to be logged in when you resume.

This is the unique reference for this
System reference QiEiCuoentiyin the application generated by the system.

TEN15- ® ewStreet Boston Lincolnshire vol,canipltivhat yelfwani heretoiglp yol
Your reference PE2 6LP track applications if you make lots of them. It

is passed to the authority.

Are you an agent acting on behalf of the applicant? Put “no” if you areapplying on your own
behalf or on behalf of a business you own or
= Yes C No work for.

Applicant Details

* First name [Ridvan ]

* Family name Demirci

*E- mail

Main telephone number Include country code.

Other telephone number

[ Indicate here if the applicant would prefer not to be contacted by telephone

Is the applicant:

(¢- Applying as a business or organisation, including as a sole trader A sole trader is a business owned by one
) o person without any special legal structure.
" Applying as an individual Applying as an individual means the

applicant isapplying so the applicant can be
employed, or for some other personal reason,
such as following a hobby.

Applicant Business

Is the applicant's business C Yes . No N ote:completing the Applicant Business
registered in the UK with section is optional in this form.
Companies House?

Is the applicant's business C  Yes @ No

registered outside the UK?

If the applicant's business is registered, use
______Jitsregistered name.

Put “none" if the applicant is not registered
VAT number ’
g | _— for VAT.

Business name

© Crown copyright Page 23



Continued from previous page...

Legal status

Applicant's position in the
business

Home country

Applicant Business Address
Building number or name
Street

District

City or town

County or administrative area
Postcode

Country

Agent Details

* First name

* Family name

* E-mail

Main telephone number

Other telephone number

Please select...

United Kingdom

The country where the applicant's
headquarters are.

If the applicant has one, this should be the

applicant's official address - that is an
I address required of the applicant by law for

l receiving communications.

|
|
|
-

|
|
|

| |

lUnited Kingdom

@han

|ST3nyurek

licensinghub@seandse.co.uk

Include country code.

[] Indicate here if you would prefer not to be contacted by telephone

Are you:

@ Anagent that is a business or organisation, including a sole trader

C A private individual acting as an agent

Agent Business

Is your business registered in
the UK with Companies
House?

Registration number

Business name

A sole trader is a business owned by one
person without any special legal structure.

Note: completing the Applicant Business
section is optional in this form.

@® Yes C No
11745429
Se & Se Consultancy Ltd.

If your business is registered, use its
registered name.

VAT number

Legal status

Put "none" if you are not registered for VAT,

Private Limited Company

& Crown copyright

Page 24




Continued from previous page...

Your position in the business |Director

Home country lUnited Kingdom

The country where the headquarters of your
business is located.

Agent Registered Address

Address registered with Companies House.

R

Building number or name |59a

Street lTurneres Hill
District |Cheshunt
City or town Hertfordshire

County or administrative area |

Postcode [ENBBNT

Country |United Kingdom

Section 2 of 9

APPLICATION DETAILS (See also guidance on completing the form, general notes and note 1)

Have you had any previous or maiden names?
O Yes @ No
* Your date of birth

National Insurance number

Place of birth

Correspondence Address

Is the address the same as (or similar to) the address given in section one?

C Yes & No

Building number or name
Street

District

City or town

County or administrative area
Postcode

Country

U Crown copyright

Applicant must be 18 years of age or older

This box need not be completed if you are an
individual not liable to pay UK national
insurance.

If "Yes” is selected you can re-use the details
from section one, or amend them as
required. Select “No" to enter a completely
new set of details.

Page 25




Continued from previous page...

Additional Contact Details

Are the contact details the same as (or similar to) those given in section one? If “Yes” is selected you can re-use the details
from section one, or amend them as
C Yes & No required. Select “No” to enter a completely
new set of details.

E-mail

Telephone number

Other telephone number

Section 3 of 9

THE PREMISES

I, the proposed user, hereby give notice under section 100 of the Licensing Act 2003 of my proposal to carry out a temporary
activity at the premises described below.

Give the address of the premises where you intend to carry on the licensable activities or if it has no address give a detailed
description (including the Ordnance Survey references). (See also guidance on completing the form, note 2)

* Does the premises have an address?

& Yes O No
Address
Is the address the same as (or similar to) the address given in section one? If “Yes" is selected you can re-use the details
from section one, or amend them as
O Yes (= No required. Select "No" to enter a completely

new set of details.

* Building number or name |5-9

* Street INew St.
* City or town |Bost0n

|
|
District |7 |
|
|

County or administrative area |

* Postcode |PE2‘I 6LP

* Country [United Kingdom [

* Does a premises licence or club premises certificate have effect in relation
to the premises (or any part of the premises)?

(® Neither (' Premises licence C  Club premises certificate

Location Details

* Provide further details about the location of the event

Whole premises(but event is for consumption off the premises)

If you intend to use only part of the premises at this address or intend to restrict the area to which this notice applies, give a
description and details below (see also guidance on completing the form, note 3)

© Crown copyright Page 26




Continued from previous page...

Describe the nature of the premises below (see also guidance on completing the form, note 4)

Off Licence

Describe the nature of the event below (see also guidance on completing the form, note 5)

Sale of Alcohol off the premises and extension of opening hours

Section 4 of 9

LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES

State the licensable activities that you intend to carry on at the premises
(see also quidance on completing the form, note 6):

O

|
O
O

The sale by retail of alcohol

The supply of alcohol by or on behalf of a club to, or to the order of, a
member of the club

The provision of regulated entertainment

The provision of late night refreshment

The giving of a late temporary event notice

Event Dates

There must be a period of at least 10 working days between the date you submit this form and the date of the earliest event
when you will be using these premises for licensable activities.

(See also guidance on completing the form,

note 7).

Late notices can be given no later than 5
working days but no earlier than 9 working
days before the event.

(See also guidance on completing the form,

note 8).

State the dates on which you intend to use these premises for licensable activities

(see also quidance on completing the form, note 9)

Event start date [ [o7] /| 2025 |
dd

mm yyyy

Event end date / m / | 2025
dd

0
mm yyyy

The maximum period for using premises for
licensable activities under the authority of a
temporary event notice is 168 hours or seven
days.

© Crown copyright Page 27




Continued from previous page...

State the times during the
event period that you propose
to carry on licensable activities
(give times in 24 hour clock)
(see also guidance on
completing the form, note 10)

Mon-Sun: 08:00-23:00

State the maximum number

of people at any one time that

you intend to allow to be

present at the premises

during the times when you Note that the maximum number of people
intend to carry on licensable cannot exceed 499.

activities, including any staff,

organisers or performers

(see also guidance on

completing the form, note 11)

w

If the licensable activities will include the supply of alcohol, state whether the
supplies will be for consumption on or off the premises, or both
(see also guidance on completing the form, note 12):

@& On the premises only
¢ Off the premises only
¢ Both

Section5 of 9

RELEVANT ENTERTAINMENT (See also quidance on completing the form, note 13)

State if the licensable activities will include the provision of relevant entertainment. If so, state the times during the event
period that you propose to provide relevant entertainment

Section 6 of 9

PERSONAL LICENCE HOLDERS (See also guidance on completing the form, note 14)

Do you currently hold a valid

personal licence? @ Yes C No

Provide the details of your personal licence below.
Issuing licensing authority
Licence number

Date of issue

Any further relevant details

& Crown copyright Page 28




Continued from previous page...

Section 7 of 9

PREVIOUS TEMPORARY EVENT NOTICES (See also guidance on completing the form, note 15)

Have you previously given a

temporary event notice in

respect of any premises for

events falling in the same ® Yes C No
calendar year as the event for

which you are now giving this

temporary event notice?

State the number of 2
temporary event notices
(including the number of late
temporary event notices, if
any) you have given for events
in that same calendar year

Have you already given a
temporary event notice for
the same premises in which
the event period:
a) Ends 24 hours or O Yes ¢ No
less before; or
b) Begins 24 hours or less
after the event period
proposed in this notice?

Section 8 of 9

ASSOCIATES AND BUSINESS COLLEAGUES (See also guidance on completing the form, note 16)

Has any associate of yours

given a temporary event

notice for an event in the

same calendar year as the O Yes @ No
event for which you are now

giving a temporary event

notice?

Has any associate of yours
already given a temporary
event notice for the same
premises in which the event
period:
a) Ends 24 hours or
less before; or
b) Begins 24 hours or less
after the event period
proposed in this notice?

O Yes (¢ No

© Crown copyright Page 29




Continued from previous page...

Has any person with whom
you are in business carrying
on licensable activities given a
temporary event notice for an
event in the same calendar
year as the event for which
you are now giving a
temporary event notice?

C  Yes & No

Has any person with whom
you are in business carrying
on licensable activities
already given a temporary
event notice for the same
premises in which the event
period:
a) Ends 24 hours or less
before; or
b) Begins 24 hours or less
after the event period
proposed in this notice?

> “Yes = No

Section 9 of 9

CONDITION (See also guidance on completing the form, note 18)

It is a condition of this temporary event notice that where the relevant licensable activities described in Sections 4 and 5
above include the supply of alcohol that all such supplies are made by or under the authority of the premises user.

PAYMENT DETAILS

This fee must be paid to the authority. If you complete the application online, you must pay it by debit or credit card.

This formality requires a fixed fee of £21

DECLARATION (See also guidance on completing the form, note 19)

* The information contained in this form is correct to the best of my knowledge and belief

* |l understand that it is an offence:

. (i) to knowingly or recklessly make a false statement in connection with this temporary event notice and that a person is
liable on summary conviction for any such offence to a fine of any amount: and

(i) to permit an unauthorised activity to be carried on at any place and that a person is liable on summary conviction for
any such offence to a fine of any amount, or to imprisonment for a term not exceeding six (6) months, or both.

PRIVACY NOTICE We are required by law to protect your privacy and inform you how your information may be used. The
Licensing team collect your personal information to process and manage your application Some of your information may
be made available on a publicly available register as required by relevant legislation. The information provided by you
may also be used for legitimate reasons by other departments of Boston Borough Council and other lawful agencies.

* These reasons may include but are not limited to: prevention of crime, detection of fraud and public safety. In some cases
information relating to your applications may be requested under the Freedom of Information Act, this council will review
these requests to consider if it is lawful to comply. The Council takes your privacy seriously. The Council is the Data
Controller for the purposes of the Data Protection Act 1998. If you want to know more about the information we have
about you, or the way we use your information please contact the Council.

X] Ticking this box indicates you have read and understood the above declaration

This section should be completed by the applicant, unless you answered "Yes" to the question "Are you an agent acting on
behalf of the applicant?”

© Crown copyright Page 30




Continued from previous page...

* Full name &rhan Senyurek J
* Capacity |Agent ]
* Date o1 |/ [o7] /[ 2025

dd mm yyyy

[ Add another signatory

L

Once you're finished you need to do the following:

1. Save this form to your computer by clicking file/save as...

2.Go back to mpszﬁ//_vm'wqov,uk/jgifpply-i’or-a-!iC(—an(;e‘:'/t(:-mporarvwzvenl»00[i(:n:-/k:\oslon/apply»1_ to upload this file and
continue with your application.

Don't forget to make sure you have all your supporting documentation to hand.

OFFICE USE ONLY

Applicant reference number |TEN1 5-9 New Street Boston Lincolnshire PE21

Fee paid

Payment provider reference

ELMS Payment Reference

Payment status

Payment authorisation code

Payment authorisation date

Date and time submitted

|
|
(
|
|
|
|
Approval deadline | [

Error message

Is Digitally signed =)

-—t
N
(%)

ey
o
lo~

~J

(0]

9  Next>

© Crown copyright Page 31




This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 4A

Lincolnshire Police

Licensing Act 2003 — Temporary Event Objection Notice (Section 104 Licensing
Act 2003)

Details of person or body making objection

Your Name: Chief Constable
Your Address: Police Headquarters
PO Box 999
Lincolnshire
LN5 7PH

Details of premises objection is about

Name of Premises: 5-9 New Street
Address of Premises: Boston Lincolnshire, PE21 6LP

Application No:

Prevention of Crime and Disorder
Public Safety

Public Nuisance

Protection of Children from Harm

X X X X

Please summarise your concerns about this application:

This objection notice is in relation to a temporary event notice (TEN) for the licensable
activity of the sale of alcohol on Friday 18t July to Thursday 24 July 2025 from 0800hrs
to 2300hrs each day to allow the premises to operate as an off-licence.

5-9 New Street sits within an area of Boston that has a Public Space Protection Order
(PSPO) which covers alcohol/street drinking (failure to comply with an officer’s request to
stop). The PSPO is designed to deal with a particular nuisance or problem in an area.
The behaviour must be having a detrimental effect on the quality of life of those in the
community, it must be persistent or continuing, and it must be unreasonable. The PSPO
can impose restrictions on the use of that area, which applies to everyone who is carrying
out that activity. The orders are designed to ensure that the law-abiding majority can enjoy
public spaces, safe from anti-social behaviour. The effect of the Order in Boston is to
prohibit consumption of alcohol within an area and to require specified things to be done
by person/s consuming alcohol in that area.

Page 33



Due to its location within the PSPO area 5-9 New Street is also targeted by the hotspot
policing patrols implemented by the Boston Neighbourhood Policing Team as part of Op
Plotting. Alcohol is a significant factor within each hotspot location and is recorded as a
contributing factor either on the incident or the crime by the officer attending. Partnership
work continues in these hotspot areas and the licensing process forms part of that, with
its role in ensuring Boston has premises licences conditioned suitably for the risk and that
operators are responsible, uphold the licensing objectives and operate within the law.

Boston Borough Council also has a detailed and comprehensive licensing policy which
offers guidance to applicants and highlights the importance of the PSPO. The focus is
very much on prevention and deterrence, having specific officers employed by the council
to enforce it alongside Police Community Support Officers.

Lincolnshire Police has had no dialogue with the notice giver concerning this TEN prior
to its submission. This TEN is one of three notices for the location that were accepted on
Tuesday 15t July 2025.

5-9 New Street previously held a premises licence, but that licence lapsed in October
2023.

On 2nd April 2025 a new operator applied for a premises licence and similarly to this TEN
there was no prior consultation with the Police, nor had the applicant considered the
PSPO or any suitable conditions to mitigate the risks associated with this style of
premises. Following a representation by Lincolnshire Police the applicant withdrew that
application.

On 17t June 2025 an email was sent to Lincolnshire Police’s licensing team by SE & SE
Consultancy enquiring about the status of the licence at 5-9 New Street. Sgt Adams
responded to that email advising that there had been a licence application earlier in 2025
and that the Police had made a representation leading to the withdrawal of the application.
It is understood that the agent then received confirmation from Boston Borough Council
that the previous premises licence lapsed in 2023. After receiving such information, it
would seem appropriate to then fully research the premises, its location and consult
further with the authorities prior to submitting any new applications. There was no further
contact beyond this time.

On 18" June 2025 plain clothed officers from Lincolnshire Police licensing team visited
the premises unannounced and carried out a walkthrough of the shop without identifying
themselves. The premises presented as a convenience store selling food, drink and
household items. Of concern was the large amount of alcohol that was on shelves and in
fridges along the length of one side of the shop. That alcohol was covered by blinds and
sheets but still partially visible to customers. There was no signage to suggest that the
alcohol was not available to purchase. Lincolnshire Police question why the business
operator has already got so much alcohol within the public area of the premises whilst in
the knowledge that there is no premises licence in place? To already have the alcohol
seems a little premature given that there had not even been any TEN or licence
application submitted at this time.

This TEN was submitted without any prior consultation and does not give Police ample
time to research the notice giver and fully understand the nature of the business and what

Page 34




the TEN seeks to achieve. The 3 working days in which Police have to object to a TEN is
not enough time to get sufficient information back from the checks made with other
responsible authorities, therefore there is a clear risk to the licensing objectives

Due to the short notice of this TEN Lincolnshire Police have not been able to meet with
the individual to gauge his experience, knowledge and suitability to operate an off-licence
in what is a high-risk area. It is recognised that the notice giver does appear to hold a
personal licence, but their understanding of the location and risks cannot be judged from
this qualification.

The TEN is somewhat confusing and perhaps displays a lack of understanding; the details
of location state that the premises is to be used for consumption of alcohol off the
premises yet in the relevant box further down “on the premises only” has been ticked. The
days for the TEN refers to Friday to Thursday yet the event period further down on the
TEN states Monday - Sunday 08:00 — 23:00. Lincolnshire Police are also aware that since
the TEN was accepted the notice giver has amended the maximum number of persons
present changing it from 3 to 20. All of the aforementioned points would perhaps imply
that these TEN’s have not been adequately thought through and have been submitted in
a rush.

TEN’s cannot have conditions imposed where there is no premises licence in place, as is
the case with 5-9 New Street. There has been little detail offered on this TEN to offer any
reassurance that the premises user has any knowledge about the location and the
associated risks. If all of the TEN’s are taken into account this premises would be
permitted to sell alcohol for a period of 3 weeks, without restrictions, there is great
potential to not only undermine the licensing objectives but also the significant amount of
work being doing locally to uphold the PSPO. Of the other licenced premises in this
locality most will at the least have conditions to restrict the sales of single cans of beer,
cider and lager and will not be permitted to sell hi-abv products.

Lincolnshire Police considers it too greater risk to the licensing objectives to have no
enforceable conditions in an off-sale style premises, selling alcohol, by a notice giver who
has not evidenced their understanding of the Licensing Act 2003 or the local area.

Lincolnshire Police request that the notice giver considers withdrawing any subsequent
TEN’s which will require a hearing to allow for the necessary checks to be made. At this
time the notice giver has not submitted an application for premises licence but prior to
doing so consultation would be advised.

Signed:

PC1299 Rebeka Casey for and on behalf of the Chief Constable of Lincolnshire Police

Dated 04/07/2025

Page 35




Page 36



APPENDIX 4B

Lincolnshire Police

Licensing Act 2003 — Temporary Event Objection Notice (Section 104 Licensing
Act 2003)

Details of person or body making objection

Your Name: Chief Constable
Your Address: Police Headquarters
PO Box 999
Lincolnshire
LN5 7PH

Details of premises objection is about

Name of Premises: 5-9 New Street
Address of Premises: Boston Lincolnshire, PE21 6LP

Application No:

Prevention of Crime and Disorder
Public Safety

Public Nuisance

Protection of Children from Harm

X X X X

Please summarise your concerns about this application:

This objection notice is in relation to a temporary event notice (TEN) for the licensable
activity of the sale of alcohol on Monday 28" July to Sunday 3rd August 2025 from
0800hrs to 2300hrs each day to allow the premises to operate as an off-licence.

5-9 New Street sits within an area of Boston that has a Public Space Protection Order
(PSPO) which covers alcohol/street drinking (failure to comply with an officer’s request to
stop). The PSPO is designed to deal with a particular nuisance or problem in an area.
The behaviour must be having a detrimental effect on the quality of life of those in the
community, it must be persistent or continuing, and it must be unreasonable. The PSPO
can impose restrictions on the use of that area, which applies to everyone who is carrying
out that activity. The orders are designed to ensure that the law-abiding majority can enjoy
public spaces, safe from anti-social behaviour. The effect of the Order in Boston is to
prohibit consumption of alcohol within an area and to require specified things to be done
by person/s consuming alcohol in that area.

Page 37



Due to its location within the PSPO area 5-9 New Street is also targeted by the hotspot
policing patrols implemented by the Boston Neighbourhood Policing Team as part of Op
Plotting. Alcohol is a significant factor within each hotspot location and is recorded as a
contributing factor either on the incident or the crime by the officer attending. Partnership
work continues in these hotspot areas and the licensing process forms part of that, with
its role in ensuring Boston has premises licences conditioned suitably for the risk and that
operators are responsible, uphold the licensing objectives and operate within the law.

Boston Borough Council also has a detailed and comprehensive licensing policy which
offers guidance to applicants and highlights the importance of the PSPO. The focus is
very much on prevention and deterrence, having specific officers employed by the council
to enforce it alongside Police Community Support Officers.

Lincolnshire Police has had no dialogue with the notice giver concerning this TEN prior
to its submission. This TEN is one of three notices for the location that were accepted on
Tuesday 15t July 2025.

5-9 New Street previously held a premises licence, but that licence lapsed in October
2023.

On 2nd April 2025 a new operator applied for a premises licence and similarly to this TEN
there was no prior consultation with the Police, nor had the applicant considered the
PSPO or any suitable conditions to mitigate the risks associated with this style of
premises. Following a representation by Lincolnshire Police the applicant withdrew that
application.

On 17t June 2025 an email was sent to Lincolnshire Police’s licensing team by SE & SE
Consultancy enquiring about the status of the licence at 5-9 New Street. Sgt Adams
responded to that email advising that there had been a licence application earlier in 2025
and that the Police had made a representation leading to the withdrawal of the application.
It is understood that the agent then received confirmation from Boston Borough Council
that the previous premises licence lapsed in 2023. After receiving such information, it
would seem appropriate to then fully research the premises, its location and consult
further with the authorities prior to submitting any new applications. There was no further
contact beyond this time.

On 18" June 2025 plain clothed officers from Lincolnshire Police licensing team visited
the premises unannounced and carried out a walkthrough of the shop without identifying
themselves. The premises presented as a convenience store selling food, drink and
household items. Of concern was the large amount of alcohol that was on shelves and in
fridges along the length of one side of the shop. That alcohol was covered by blinds and
sheets but still partially visible to customers. There was no signage to suggest that the
alcohol was not available to purchase. Lincolnshire Police question why the business
operator has already got so much alcohol within the public area of the premises whilst in
the knowledge that there is no premises licence in place? To already have the alcohol
seems a little premature given that there had not even been any TEN or licence
application submitted at this time.

This TEN was submitted without any prior consultation and does not give Police ample
time to research the notice giver and fully understand the nature of the business and what

Page 38




the TEN seeks to achieve. The 3 working days in which Police have to object to a TEN is
not enough time to get sufficient information back from the checks made with other
responsible authorities, therefore there is a clear risk to the licensing objectives

Due to the short notice of this TEN Lincolnshire Police have not been able to meet with
the individual to gauge his experience, knowledge and suitability to operate an off-licence
in what is a high-risk area. It is recognised that the notice giver does appear to hold a
personal licence, but their understanding of the location and risks cannot be judged from
this qualification.

The TEN is somewhat confusing and perhaps displays a lack of understanding; the details
of location state that the premises is to be used for consumption of alcohol off the
premises yet in the relevant box further down “on the premises only” has been ticked.
Lincolnshire Police are also aware that since the TEN was accepted the notice giver has
amended the maximum number of persons present changing it from 3 to 20. All of the
aforementioned points would perhaps imply that these TEN’s have not been adequately
thought through and have been submitted in a rush.

TEN’s cannot have conditions imposed where there is no premises licence in place, as is
the case with 5-9 New Street. There has been little detail offered on this TEN to offer any
reassurance that the premises user has any knowledge about the location and the
associated risks. If all of the TEN’s are taken into account this premises would be
permitted to sell alcohol for a period of 3 weeks, without restrictions, there is great
potential to not only undermine the licensing objectives but also the significant amount of
work being doing locally to uphold the PSPO. Of the other licenced premises in this
locality most will at the least have conditions to restrict the sales of single cans of beer,
cider and lager and will not be permitted to sell hi-abv products.

Lincolnshire Police considers it too greater risk to the licensing objectives to have no
enforceable conditions in an off-sale style premises, selling alcohol, by a notice giver who
has not evidenced their understanding of the Licensing Act 2003 or the local area.

Lincolnshire Police request that the notice giver considers withdrawing any subsequent
TEN’s which will require a hearing to allow for the necessary checks to be made. At this
time the notice giver has not submitted an application for premises licence but prior to
doing so consultation would be advised.

Signed:

PC1299 Rebeka Casey for and on behalf of the Chief Constable of Lincolnshire Police

Dated 04/07/2025

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 5

1. Introduction

The Licensing Act 2003

11

The Licensing Act 2003 (referred to in this Guidance as the 2003 Act), its explanatory
notes and any statutory instruments made under it may be viewed online at
www.legislation.gov.uk. The statutory instruments include regulations setting out the
content and format of application forms and notices. The Home Office has responsibility
for the 2003 Act. However, the Department for Culture, Media and Sport (DCMS) is
responsible for regulated entertainment, for which there is provision in Schedule 1 to the
2003 Act (see Chapter 16).

Licensing objectives and aims

1.2

1.3

14

15

The legislation provides a clear focus on the promotion of four statutory objectives which
must be addressed when licensing functions are undertaken.

The licensing objectives are:

» The prevention of crime and disorder;
* Public safety;

» The prevention of public nuisance; and
* The protection of children from harm.

Each objective is of equal importance. There are no other statutory licensing objectives,
so that the promotion of the four objectives is a paramount consideration at all times.

However, the legislation also supports a number of other key aims and purposes.
These are vitally important and should be principal aims for everyone involved in
licensing work. They include:

+ protecting the public and local residents from crime, anti-social behaviour and noise
nuisance caused by irresponsible licensed premises;

 giving the police and licensing authorities the powers they need to effectively manage
and police the night-time economy and take action against those premises that are
causing problems;

* recognising the important role which pubs and other licensed premises play in our
local communities by minimising the regulatory burden on business, encouraging
innovation and supporting responsible premises;

» providing a regulatory framework for alcohol which reflects the needs of local
communities and empowers local authorities to make and enforce decisions about
the most appropriate licensing strategies for their local area; and

* encouraging greater community involvement in licensing decisions and giving local
residents the opportunity to have their say regarding licensing decisions that may
affect them.

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 | 1

Page 41


http://www.legislation.gov.uk/
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/

The guidance

1.6

Section 182 of the 2003 Act provides that the Secretary of State must issue and, from
time to time, may revise guidance to licensing authorities on the discharge of their
functions under the 2003 Act. This revised guidance takes effect as soon as it is
published. Where a licence application was made prior to the publication of the revised
guidance, it should be processed in accordance with the guidance in effect at the time at
which the application was made; the revised guidance does not apply retrospectively.
However, all applications received by the licensing authority on or after the date the
revised guidance was published should be processed in accordance with the revised
guidance.

Purpose

1.7

1.8

This Guidance is provided to licensing authorities in relation to the carrying out of their
functions under the 2003 Act. It also provides information to magistrates’ courts hearing
appeals against licensing decisions and has been made widely available for the benefit
of those who run licensed premises, their legal advisers and the general public. It is a
key medium for promoting best practice, ensuring consistent application of licensing
powers across England and Wales and for promoting fairness, equal treatment and
proportionality.

The police remain key enforcers of licensing law. This Guidance does not bind police
officers who, within the parameters of their force orders and the law, remain
operationally independent. However, this Guidance is provided to support and assist
police officers in interpreting and implementing the 2003 Act in the promotion of the four
licensing objectives.

Legal status

1.9

1.10

Section 4 of the 2003 Act provides that, in carrying out its functions, a licensing authority
must ‘have regard to’ guidance issued by the Secretary of State under section 182. This
Guidance is therefore binding on all licensing authorities to that extent. However, this
Guidance cannot anticipate every possible scenario or set of circumstances that may
arise and, as long as licensing authorities have properly understood this Guidance, they
may depart from it if they have good reason to do so and can provide full reasons.
Departure from this Guidance could give rise to an appeal or judicial review, and the
reasons given will then be a key consideration for the courts when considering the
lawfulness and merits of any decision taken.

Nothing in this Guidance should be taken as indicating that any requirement of licensing
law or any other law may be overridden (including the obligations placed on any public
authorities under human rights legislation). This Guidance does not in any way replace
the statutory provisions of the 2003 Act or add to its scope and licensing authorities
should note that interpretation of the 2003 Act is a matter for the courts. Licensing
authorities and others using this Guidance must take their own professional and legal
advice about its implementation.

2 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003

Page 42



Licensing policies
1.11  Section 5 of the 2003 Act requires a licensing authority to determine and publish a

statement of its licensing policy at least once every five years. The policy must be
published before it carries out any licensing functions under the 2003 Act.

1.12 However, determining and publishing a statement of its policy is a licensing function and
as such the authority must have regard to this Guidance when taking this step. A
licensing authority may depart from its own policy if the individual circumstances of any
case merit such a decision in the interests of the promotion of the licensing objectives.
But once again, it is important that it should be able to give full reasons for departing
from its published statement of licensing policy. Where revisions to this Guidance are
issued by the Secretary of State, there may be a period of time when the licensing
policy statement is inconsistent with the Guidance (for example, during any consultation
by the licensing authority). In these circumstances, the licensing authority should have
regard, and give appropriate weight, to this Guidance and its own existing licensing
policy statement.

Licensable activities
1.13  Forthe purposes of the 2003 Act, the following are licensable activities:

* The sale by retail of alcohol;

* The supply of alcohol by or on behalf of a club to, or to the order of, a member of the
club;

» The provision of regulated entertainment; and
» The provision of late night refreshment.

Further explanation of these terms is provided in Chapter 3.

Authorisations or permissions
1.14 The 2003 Act provides for four different types of authorisation or permission, as follows:

* Premises licence — to use premises for licensable activities.

» Club premises certificate — to allow a qualifying club to engage in qualifying club
activities as set out in Section 1 of the Act.

Temporary event notice — to carry out licensable activities at a temporary event.

Personal licence — to sell or authorise the sale of alcohol from premises in respect of
which there is a premises licence.

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 | 3

Page 43



Each application on its own merits

1.17 Each application must be considered on its own merits and in accordance with the
licensing authority’s statement of licensing policy; for example, if the application falls
within the scope of a cumulative impact policy. Conditions attached to licences and
certificates must be tailored to the individual type, location and characteristics of the
premises and events concerned. This is essential to avoid the imposition of
disproportionate and overly burdensome conditions on premises where there is no need
for such conditions. Standardised conditions should be avoided and indeed may be
unlawful where they cannot be shown to be appropriate for the promotion of the
licensing objectives in an individual case.

4 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003

Page 44



2. The licensing objectives

Crime and disorder

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

Licensing authorities should look to the police as the main source of advice on crime
and disorder. They should also seek to involve the local Community Safety Partnership
(CSP).

In the exercise of their functions, licensing authorities should seek to co-operate with the
Security Industry Authority (“SIA”) as far as possible and consider adding relevant
conditions to licences where appropriate. The SIA also plays an important role in
preventing crime and disorder by ensuring that door supervisors are properly licensed
and, in partnership with police and other agencies, that security companies are not
being used as fronts for serious and organised criminal activity. This may include
making specific enquiries or visiting premises through intelligence led operations in
conjunction with the police, local authorities and other partner agencies. Similarly, the
provision of requirements for door supervision may be appropriate to ensure that people
who are drunk, drug dealers or people carrying firearms do not enter the premises and
ensuring that the police are kept informed.

Conditions should be targeted on deterrence and preventing crime and disorder
including the prevention of illegal working in licensed premises (see paragraph 10.10).
For example, where there is good reason to suppose that disorder may take place, the
presence of closed-circuit television (CCTV) cameras both inside and immediately
outside the premises can actively deter disorder, nuisance, anti-social behaviour and
crime generally. Some licence holders may wish to have cameras on their premises for
the prevention of crime directed against the business itself, its staff, or its customers.
But any condition may require a broader approach, and it may be appropriate to ensure
that the precise location of cameras is set out on plans to ensure that certain areas are
properly covered and there is no subsequent dispute over the terms of the condition.

The inclusion of radio links and ring-round phone systems should be considered an
appropriate condition for public houses, bars and nightclubs operating in city and town
centre leisure areas with a high density of licensed premises. These systems allow
managers of licensed premises to communicate instantly with the police and facilitate a
rapid response to any disorder which may be endangering the customers and staff on
the premises.

Conditions relating to the management competency of designated premises supervisors
should not normally be attached to premises licences. It will normally be the
responsibility of the premises licence holder as an employer, and not the licensing
authority, to ensure that the managers appointed at the premises are competent and
appropriately trained. The designated premises supervisor is the key person who will
usually be responsible for the day to day management of the premises by the premises
licence holder, including the prevention of disorder. A condition of this kind may only be
justified as appropriate in rare circumstances where it can be demonstrated that, in the
circumstances associated with particular premises, poor management competency
could give rise to issues of crime and disorder and public safety.

6 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003

Page 45



2.6

2.7

The prevention of crime includes the prevention of immigration crime including the
prevention of illegal working in licensed premises. Licensing authorities should work with
Home Office Immigration Enforcement, as well as the police, in respect of these
matters. Licence conditions that are considered appropriate for the prevention of illegal
working in licensed premises might include requiring a premises licence holder to
undertake right to work checks on all staff employed at the licensed premises or
requiring that evidence of a right to work check, either physical or digital (e.g. a copy of
any document checked as part of a right to work check or a clear copy of the online right
to work check) are retained at the licensed premises.

The objective to crime under the Licensing Act 2003 would include taking measures to
prevent incidents of spiking which would usually be prosecuted under section 23 and 24
of the Offences Against the Person Act 1861, and section 61 of the Sexual Offences Act
2003. The following examples are within the range of behaviours that would be
considered spiking. This list is not exhaustive:

e Putting alcohol into someone’s drink without their knowledge or permission

e Putting prescription or illegal drugs into an alcoholic or non-alcoholic drink without
their knowledge or permission

e Injecting another person with prescription or illegal drugs without their knowledge or
permission

e Putting prescription or illegal drugs into another person's food without their
knowledge or permission

e Putting prescription or illegal drugs into another person's cigarette or vape without
their knowledge or permission

Public safety

2.8

2.9

Licence holders have a responsibility to ensure the safety of those using their premises,
as a part of their duties under the 2003 Act. This concerns the safety of people using the
relevant premises rather than public health which is addressed in other legislation.
Physical safety includes the prevention of accidents and injuries and other immediate
harms that can result from alcohol consumption such as unconsciousness or alcohol
poisoning. Conditions relating to public safety may also promote the crime and disorder
objective as noted above. There will of course be occasions when a public safety
condition could incidentally benefit a person’s health more generally, but it should not be
the purpose of the condition as this would be outside the licensing authority’s powers
(be ultra vires) under the 2003 Act. Conditions should not be imposed on a premises
licence or club premises certificate which relate to cleanliness or hygiene.

A number of matters should be considered in relation to public safety. These may
include:

» Fire safety;

» Ensuring appropriate access for emergency services such as ambulances;

+ Good communication with local authorities and emergency services, for example
communications networks with the police and signing up for local incident alerts (see
paragraph 2.4 above);

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 | 7

Page 46



2.10

2.11
2.12

2.13

2.14

2.15

» Ensuring the presence of trained first aiders on the premises and appropriate first aid
kits;

» Ensuring the safety of people when leaving the premises (for example, through the
provision of information on late-night transportation);

» Ensuring appropriate and frequent waste disposal, particularly of glass bottles;

» Ensuring appropriate limits on the maximum capacity of the premises (see
paragraphs 2.12-2.13, and Chapter 10; and

» Considering the use of CCTV in and around the premises (as noted in paragraph 2.3
above, this may also assist with promoting the crime and disorder objective).

The measures that are appropriate to promote public safety will vary between premises
and the matters listed above may not apply in all cases. As set out in Chapter 8 (8.38-
8.46), applicants should consider when making their application which steps it is
appropriate to take to promote the public safety objective and demonstrate how they
achieve that.

Counter terrorism and public safety

Licensing committees may wish to give due consideration to appropriate counter-
terrorism measures and advice when considering licence applications, for example at
high profile or large premises or events or where there are factors which may increase
attractiveness to attacks, and in particular when in receipt of relevant advice from police
counter terrorist staff.

It is particularly relevant to consider conditions around health care provision in this
regard. Any additional licensing conditions should be appropriate and proportionate to
the venue as noted in para 1.16. We recommend that all licensing authorities pay
particular attention to terrorist threats when making specific licence conditions in relation
to security or health care provision at appropriate premises and events applying for a
licence.

As noted in para 2.8 licensing authorities can recommend conditions where appropriate
to do so, such as ensuring appropriate access for emergency services and vehicles
such as ambulances; good communication with local authorities and emergency
services, for example communications networks with the police and signing up for local
incident alerts (see paragraph 2.4); and ensuring the presence of sufficient trained first
aiders on the premises and appropriate first aid kits.

However, in some instances, licensing authorities may wish to tailor their approach,
depending on the particular nature of the application, and go further when addressing
concerns around possible terrorist or other such risks. We have provided an Annex to
help inform and support licensing authorities in their decision making with regards to
additional licence conditions for premises and events, that may benefit from further
security planning and health care provision in the aftermath of a particular type of
incident.

8 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003

Page 47



Public nuisance

2.21

2.22

2.23

2.24

2.25

The 2003 Act enables licensing authorities and responsible authorities, through
representations, to consider what constitutes public nuisance and what is appropriate to
prevent it in terms of conditions attached to specific premises licences and club
premises certificates. It is therefore important that in considering the promotion of this
licensing objective, licensing authorities and responsible authorities focus on the effect
of the licensable activities at the specific premises on persons living and working
(including those carrying on business) in the area around the premises which may be
disproportionate and unreasonable. The issues will mainly concern noise nuisance, light
pollution, noxious smells and litter.

Public nuisance is given a statutory meaning in many pieces of legislation. It is however
not narrowly defined in the 2003 Act and retains its broad common law meaning. It may
include in appropriate circumstances the reduction of the living and working amenity and
environment of other persons living and working in the area of the licensed premises.
Public nuisance may also arise as a result of the adverse effects of artificial light, dust,
odour and insects or where its effect is prejudicial to health.

Conditions relating to noise nuisance will usually concern steps appropriate to control
the levels of noise emanating from premises. This might be achieved by a simple
measure such as ensuring that doors and windows are kept closed after a particular
time, or persons are not permitted in garden areas of the premises after a certain time.
More sophisticated measures like the installation of acoustic curtains or rubber speaker
mounts to mitigate sound escape from the premises may be appropriate. However,
conditions in relation to live or recorded music may not be enforceable in circumstances
where the entertainment activity itself is not licensable (see chapter 16). Any conditions
appropriate to promote the prevention of public nuisance should be tailored to the type,
nature and characteristics of the specific premises and its licensable activities. Licensing
authorities should avoid inappropriate or disproportionate measures that could deter
events that are valuable to the community, such as live music. Noise limiters, for
example, are expensive to purchase and install and are likely to be a considerable
burden for smaller venues.

As with all conditions, those relating to noise nuisance may not be appropriate in certain
circumstances where provisions in other legislation adequately protect those living in the
area of the premises. But as stated earlier in this Guidance, the approach of licensing
authorities and responsible authorities should be one of prevention and when their
powers are engaged, licensing authorities should be aware of the fact that other
legislation may not adequately cover concerns raised in relevant representations and
additional conditions may be appropriate.

Where applications have given rise to representations, any appropriate conditions
should normally focus on the most sensitive periods. For example, the most sensitive
period for people being disturbed by unreasonably loud music is at night and into the
early morning when residents in adjacent properties may be attempting to go to sleep or
are sleeping. This is why there is still a need for a licence for performances of live music
between 11 pm and 8 am. In certain circumstances, conditions relating to noise

10 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003

Page 48



2.26

2.27

emanating from the premises may also be appropriate to address any disturbance
anticipated as customers enter and leave.

Measures to control light pollution will also require careful thought. Bright lighting
outside premises which is considered appropriate to prevent crime and disorder may
itself give rise to light pollution for some neighbours. Applicants, licensing authorities
and responsible authorities will need to balance these issues.

Beyond the immediate area surrounding the premises, these are matters for the
personal responsibility of individuals under the law. An individual who engages in anti-
social behaviour is accountable in their own right. However, it would be perfectly
reasonable for a licensing authority to impose a condition, following relevant
representations, that requires the licence holder or club to place signs at the exits from
the building encouraging patrons to be quiet until they leave the area, or that, if they
wish to smoke, to do so at designated places on the premises instead of outside, and to
respect the rights of people living nearby to a peaceful night.

Protection of children from harm

2.28

2.29

2.30

The protection of children from harm includes the protection of children from moral,
psychological and physical harm. This includes not only protecting children from the
harms associated directly with alcohol consumption but also wider harms such as
exposure to strong language and sexual expletives (for example, in the context of
exposure to certain films or adult entertainment). Licensing authorities must also
consider the need to protect children from sexual exploitation when undertaking
licensing functions.

The Government believes that it is completely unacceptable to sell alcohol to children.
Conditions relating to the access of children where alcohol is sold and which are
appropriate to protect them from harm should be carefully considered. Moreover,
conditions restricting the access of children to premises should be strongly considered
in circumstances where:

+ adult entertainment is provided;

« a member or members of the current management have been convicted for serving
alcohol to minors or with a reputation for allowing underage drinking (other than in the
context of the exemption in the 2003 Act relating to 16 and 17 year olds consuming
beer, wine and cider when accompanied by an adult during a table meal);

* itis known that unaccompanied children have been allowed access;

 there is a known association with drug taking or dealing; or

* in some cases, the premises are used exclusively or primarily for the sale of alcohol
for consumption on the premises.

It is also possible that activities, such as adult entertainment, may take place at certain
times on premises but not at other times. For example, premises may operate as a café
bar during the day providing meals for families but also provide entertainment with a
sexual content after 8.00pm. It is not possible to give an exhaustive list of what amounts
to entertainment or services of an adult or sexual nature. Applicants, responsible
authorities and licensing authorities will need to consider this point carefully. This would
broadly include topless bar staff, striptease, lap-, table- or pole-dancing, performances
involving feigned violence or horrific incidents, feigned or actual sexual acts or fetishism,

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 | 11

Page 49



2.31

2.32

2.33

2.34

2.35

2.36

or entertainment involving strong and offensive language.

Applicants must be clear in their operating schedules about the activities and times at
which the events would take place to help determine when it is not appropriate for
children to enter the premises. Consideration should also be given to the proximity of
premises to schools and youth clubs so that applicants take appropriate steps to ensure
that advertising relating to their premises, or relating to events at their premises, is not
displayed at a time when children are likely to be near the premises.

Licensing authorities and responsible authorities should expect applicants, when
preparing an operating schedule or club operating schedule, to set out the steps to be
taken to protect children from harm when on the premises.

Conditions, where they are appropriate, should reflect the licensable activities taking
place on the premises. In addition to the mandatory condition regarding age verification,
other conditions relating to the protection of children from harm can include:

* restrictions on the hours when children may be present;

* restrictions or exclusions on the presence of children under certain ages when
particular specified activities are taking place;

* restrictions on the parts of the premises to which children may have access;

* age restrictions (below 18);

* restrictions or exclusions when certain activities are taking place;

» requirements for an accompanying adult (including for example, a combination of
requirements which provide that children under a particular age must be
accompanied by an adult); and

+ full exclusion of people under 18 from the premises when any licensable activities are
taking place.

Please see also Chapter 10 for details about the Licensing Act 2003 (Mandatory
Licensing Conditions) Order 2010.

Licensing authorities should give considerable weight to representations about child
protection matters. In addition to the responsible authority whose functions relate
directly to child protection, the Director of Public Health may also have access to
relevant evidence to inform such representations. These representations may include,
amongst other things, the use of health data about the harms that alcohol can cause to
underage drinkers. Where a responsible authority, or other person, presents evidence to
the licensing authority linking specific premises with harms to children (such as
ambulance data or emergency department attendances by persons under 18 years old
with alcohol- related illnesses or injuries) this evidence should be considered, and the
licensing authority should also consider what action is appropriate to ensure this
licensing objective is effectively enforced. In relation to applications for the grant of a
licence in areas where evidence is presented on high levels of alcohol-related harms in
persons aged under 18, it is recommended that the licensing authority considers what
conditions may be appropriate to ensure that this objective is promoted effectively.

The 2003 Act provides that, where a premises licence or club premises certificate
authorises the exhibition of a film, it must include a condition requiring the admission of
children to films to be restricted in accordance with recommendations given either by a
body designated under section 4 of the Video Recordings Act 1984 specified in the

12 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003

Page 50



licence (the British Board of Film Classification is currently the only body which has
been so designated) or by the licensing authority itself. Further details are given in
Chapter 10.

2.37 Theatres may present a range of diverse activities and entertainment including, for
example, variety shows incorporating adult entertainment. It is appropriate in these
cases for a licensing authority to consider restricting the admission of children in such
circumstances. Entertainments may also be presented at theatres specifically for
children. It will be appropriate to consider whether a condition should be attached to a
premises licence or club premises certificate which requires the presence of a sufficient
number of adult staff on the premises to ensure the wellbeing of the children during any
emergency.

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 | 13

Page 51



/. Temporary Event Notices (TENS)

7.1

This Chapter covers the arrangements in Part 5 of the 2003 Act for the temporary
carrying on of licensable activities which are not authorised by a premises licence or
club premises certificate.

General

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

The system of permitted temporary activities is intended as a light touch process, and
as such, the carrying on of licensable activities does not have to be authorised by the
licensing authority on an application. Instead, a person wishing to hold an event at
which such activities are proposed to be carried on (the “premises user”) gives notice to
the licensing authority of the event (a “temporary event notice” or “TEN”).

The TEN must be given to the licensing authority in the form prescribed in regulations
made under the 2003 Act. The form requires the user to describe key aspects of the
proposed event, including the general nature of the premises and the event, the
licensable activities intended to be carried on at the proposed event, including whether
they will include any relevant entertainment as defined in Schedule 3 to the Local
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 (i.e. displays of nudity designed to
sexually stimulate any member of the audience including, but not limited to, lap dancing
and pole dancing). Under the 2003 Act ‘premises’ can mean any place. Events
authorised under a TEN will therefore not always be in a building with a formal address
and can take place, for example, in public parks and plots within larger areas of land. In
all cases, the premises user should provide a clear description of the area in which they
propose to carry on licensable activities, including whether the premises are, for
example, an open field or a beer tent. Local authorities and “relevant persons” (see
below) may wish to make enquiries where appropriate to satisfy themselves of the exact
location for where a TEN is being given.

Unless it is sent electronically, it must be sent to the relevant licensing authority, to the
police and “local authority exercising environmental health functions” (“‘EHA”) at least
ten working days before the event. A premises user may also give a limited number of
“‘late TENs” to the licensing authority less than 10 working days before the event to
which they relate, although certain restrictions apply (see paragraphs 7.12-7.14).
“Working day” under the 2003 Act means any day other than a Saturday, Sunday,
Christmas Day, Good Friday or Bank Holiday. For limited purposes in relation to a TEN,
the 2003 Act defines a “day” as a period of 24 hours beginning at midnight.

If a TEN is sent electronically via GOV.UK or the licensing authority’s own facility, the
licensing authority must notify the police and EHA as soon as possible and no later than
the first working day after the TEN is given.

The police or EHA (“relevant persons” for the purposes of TENs) may intervene to
prevent such an event taking place by sending an objection to the licensing authority,
which the licensing authority must consider on the basis of the statutory licensing
objectives and decide whether the event should go ahead. A relevant person may also
intervene by agreeing a modification of the proposed arrangements directly with the
TENS user (see paragraph 7.36). If a relevant person sends an objection, this may

48 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003

Page 52



1.7

result in the licensing authority imposing conditions on a TEN but only where the venue
at which the event is to be held has an existing premises licence or club premises
certificate. When giving a TEN, the premises user should consider the promotion of the
four licensing objectives. The licensing authority may only otherwise intervene if the
statutory permitted limits on TENs would be exceeded (see paragraphs 7.15-7.22).

A TEN does not relieve the premises user from any requirements under planning law for
appropriate planning permission where it is required.

Standard and late temporary event notices

7.8

There are two types of TEN: a standard TEN and a late TEN. These are subject to
different processes: a standard notice is given no later than ten working days before the
event to which it relates; and a late notice is given not before nine and not later than five
working days before the event.

Standard temporary event notices

7.9

7.10

7.11

“Ten working days” (and other periods of days which apply to other requirements in
relation to TENS) exclude the day the notice is received and the first day of the event.

The police and EHA have a period of three working days from when they are given the
notice to object to it on the basis of any of the four licensing objectives.

Although ten clear working days is the minimum possible notice that may be given,
licensing authorities should publicise their preferences in terms of advance notice and
encourage premises users to provide the earliest possible notice of events planned by
them. Licensing authorities should also consider publicising a preferred maximum time
in advance of an event by when TENs should ideally be given to them.

Late temporary event notices

7.12

7.13

7.14

Late TENSs are intended to assist premises users who are required for reasons outside
their control to, for example, change the venue for an event at short notice. However,
late TENs may, of course, be given in any circumstances providing the limits specified
at paragraph 7.15 are not exceeded.

Late TENs can be given up to five clear working days but no earlier than nine clear
working days before the event is due to take place and, unless given electronically to
the licensing authority, must also be sent by the premises user to the police and EHA. A
late TEN given less than five days before the event to which it relates will be returned as
void and the activities to which it relates will not be authorised.

A key difference between standard and late TENs is the process following an objection
notice from the police or EHA. Where an objection notice is received in relation to a
standard TEN the licensing authority must hold a hearing to consider the objection,
unless all parties agree that a hearing is unnecessary. If the police, EHA or both give an
objection to a late TEN, the notice will not be valid and the event will not go ahead as
there is no scope for a hearing or the application of any existing licence conditions.

Limitations

7.15

A number of limitations are imposed on the use of TENs by the 2003 Act:

» the number of times a premises user may give a TEN is 50 times in a calendar year

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 | 49

Page 53



for a personal licence holder and five times in a calendar year for other people;

» the number of times a premises user may give a late TEN is limited to 10 times in a
calendar year for a personal licence holder and twice for other people. Late TENs
count towards the total number of permitted TENSs (i.e. the limit of five TENs a year
for non-personal licence holders and 50 TENSs for personal licence holders). A notice
that is given less than ten working days before the event to which it relates, when the
premises user has already given the permitted number of late TENSs in that calendar
year, will be returned as void and the activities described in it will not be authorised.

+ the number of times a TEN may be given for any particular premises is 15 times in a
calendar year,

» the maximum duration of an event authorised by a TEN is 168 hours (seven days);

« the maximum total duration of the events authorised by TENS in relation to individual
premises is 21 days in a calendar year;

» the maximum number of people attending at any one time is 499 (including any staff
and any other persons); and

» the minimum period between events authorised under separate TENSs in relation to
the same premises (not including withdrawn TENS) by the same premises user is 24
hours.

7.16  Any associate, relative or business partner of the premises user is considered to be the
same premises user in relation to these restrictions. The 2003 Act defines an associate,
in relation to the premises user, as being:

+ the spouse or civil partner of that person;
+ achild, parent, grandchild, grandparent, brother or sister of that person;
« an agent or employee of that person; or

 the spouse or civil partner of a person listed in either of the two preceding bullet
points.

7.17 A person living with another person as their husband or wife, is treated for these
purposes as their spouse. ‘Civil partner’ has its meaning in the Civil Partnership Act
2004.

7.18 A TEN that is given may be subsequently withdrawn by the TEN user by giving the
licensing authority a notice to that effect no later than 24 hours before the beginning of
the event period specified in the TEN. Otherwise, the TEN will be included within the
limits of TENSs allowed in a given calendar year, even if the event does not go ahead.

7.19  Once these limits have been reached, the licensing authority should issue a counter
notice (permitted limits) if any more are given. Proposed activities that exceed these
limits will require a premises licence or club premises certificate.

7.20 TENs may be given in respect of premises which already have a premises licence or
club premises certificate to cover licensable activities not permitted by the existing
authorisation.

7.21  In determining whether the maximum total duration of the periods covered by TENSs at
any individual premises has exceeded 21 days, an event beginning before midnight
and continuing into the next day would count as two days towards the 21 day limitation.

50 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003

Page 54



71.22

There is nothing in the 2003 Act to prevent notification of multiple events at the same
time, provided the first event is at least ten working days away (or five working days
away in the case of a late TEN). For example, an individual personal licence holder
wishing to exhibit and sell beer at a series of farmers’ markets may wish to give several
notices simultaneously. However, this would only be possible where the limits are not
exceeded in the case of each notice. Where the events are due to take place in different
licensing authority (and police) areas, the respective licensing authorities and relevant
persons would each need to be notified accordingly.

Who can give a temporary event notice?
Personal licence holders

7.23

A personal licence holder can give a TEN at any premises on up to 50 occasions in a
calendar year. This limit is inclusive of any late TENs (subject to a maximum of 10)
given in the same year. The use of each TEN must of course observe the limits
described above, including the limit of 15 TENS in respect of each premises in a
calendar year.

Non-personal licence holders

7.24

The 2003 Act provides that any individual aged 18 or over may give a TEN to authorise
the carrying on of all licensable activities under the Licensing Act 2003, whether or not
that individual holds a personal licence. Such an individual will not, therefore, have met
the requirements that apply to a personal licence holder under Part 6 of the 2003 Act.
Where alcohol is not intended to be sold, this should not matter. However, many events
will involve a combination of licensable activities and the 2003 Act limits the number of
notices that may be given by any non-personal licence holder to five occasions in a
calendar year (inclusive of any late TENs — subject to a maximum of 2 - in the same
year). In every other respect, the Guidance and information set out in the paragraphs
above applies.

Role of the licensing authority

7.25

7.26

1.27

The licensing authority must check that the limitations set down in Part 5 of the 2003 Act
are being observed and intervene if they are not (see paragraph 7.15). For example, a
TEN would be void unless there is a minimum of 24 hours between events notified by
the same premises user, or an associate or someone who is in business with the
relevant premises user in respect of the same premises. This is to prevent evasion of
the seven day (or 168 hour) limit on such events and the need to obtain a full premises
licence or club premises certificate for more major or permanent events. In addition, for
these purposes, a TEN is treated as being from the same premises user if it is given by
an associate.

Where the application is not within the statutory parameters described earlier, the
licensing authority will issue a counter notice to the premises user.

Where the TEN is in order, the relevant fee paid and the event falls within the prescribed
limits, the licensing authority will record the notice in its register and send an
acknowledgement to the premises user (which may be given electronically). The
licensing authority must do so, no later than the end of the first working day following the
day on which it was received (or by the end of the second working day if it was received

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 | 51

Page 55



7.28

7.29

7.30

7.31

on a non-working day), unless an objection notice is received beforehand from the
police or EHA on the basis of any of the four licensing objectives (see paragraphs
below).

If the licensing authority receives an objection notice from the police or EHA that is not
withdrawn, it must (in the case of a standard TEN only) hold a hearing to consider the
objection unless all parties agree that this is unnecessary. The licensing committee may
decide to allow the licensable activities to go ahead as stated in the notice. If the notice
is in connection with licensable activities at licensed premises, the licensing authority
may also impose one or more of the existing licence or certificate conditions on the TEN
(insofar as such conditions are not inconsistent with the event) if it considers that this is
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives. If the authority decides to
impose conditions, it must give notice to the premises user which includes a statement
of conditions (a “notice (statement of conditions)”) and provide a copy to each relevant
party. Alternatively, it can decide that the event would undermine the licensing
objectives and should not take place. In this case, the licensing authority must give a
counter notice.

Premises users are not required to be on the premises during the event authorised by
the TEN, but they will remain liable to prosecution for certain offences that may be
committed at the premises during the period covered by it. These include, for example,
the offences of the sale of alcohol to a person who is drunk; persistently selling alcohol
to children and allowing disorderly conduct on licensed premises.

In the case of an event authorised by a TEN, failure to adhere to the requirements of the
2003 Act, such as the limitation of no more than 499 being present at any one time,
would mean that the event was unauthorised. In such circumstances, the premises user
would be liable to prosecution.

Section 8 of the 2003 Act requires licensing authorities to keep a register containing
certain matters, including a record of TENs received. Under Schedule 3 of the 2003 Act,
the licensing authority must also keep a record of such matters including any notice of
withdrawal of a TEN, any counter notice to a TEN given following an objection by a
relevant person and any TEN received following modification. If requested to do so, a
licensing authority must supply a person with a copy of the information contained in any
entry in its register. Each licensing authority must also provide facilities for making the
information contained in the entries in its register available for inspection by any person
during office hours and without payment. Licensing authorities may wish to consider
bringing TENSs to the attention of local councillors and residents by making their register
available online or including relevant details of a TEN when it is received, along with
notice of licence applications on the authority's website. There is no requirement to
record all the personal information given on a TEN.

Police and environmental health intervention

7.32

7.33

The system of permitted temporary activities gives police and EHAs the opportunity to
consider whether they should object to a TEN on the basis of any of the licensing
objectives.

If the police or EHA believe that allowing the premises to be used in accordance with
the TEN will undermine the licensing objectives, they must give the premises user and

52 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003

Page 56



7.34

7.35

7.36

the licensing authority an objection notice. The objection notice must be given within the
period of three working days following the day on which they received the TEN.

Where a standard TEN was given, the licensing authority must consider the objection at
a hearing before a counter notice can be issued. At the hearing, the police, EHA and the
premises user may make representations to the licensing authority. Following the
hearing, the licensing authority may decide to impose conditions which already apply to
an existing premises licence or club premises certificate at the venue, or issue a counter
notice to prevent the event going ahead. As noted above, there is no scope for hearings
(or appeals) in respect of late TENs and if objections are raised by the police or EHA in
relation to a late TEN, the notice will be invalid and the event will not go ahead.

Such cases might arise because of concerns about the scale, location, timing of the
event or concerns about public nuisance — even where the statutory limits on numbers
are being observed. The premises user who signs the form is legally responsible for
ensuring that the numbers present do not exceed the permitted limit at any one time. In
cases where there is reason to doubt that the numbers will remain within the permitted
limit the premises user should make clear what the nature of the event(s) is and how
they will ensure that the permitted persons limit will not be exceeded. For example,
where notices are being given for TENs simultaneously on adjacent plots of land it may
be appropriate for door staff to be employed with counters. In each case it is important
that licensing authorities and relevant persons can consider whether they believe that
the premises user intends to exceed the 499 person limit, or will be unable to control or
know whether the limit will be exceeded. Where the planned activities are likely to
breach the statutory limits or undermine the licensing objectives, it is likely to be
appropriate for the police or EHA to raise objections.

However, in most cases, where for example, alcohol is supplied away from licensed
premises at a temporary bar under the control of a personal licence holder, (such as at
weddings with a cash bar or small social or sporting events) this should not usually give
rise to the use of these powers.

Modification

7.37

As noted above, the police or EHA (as “relevant persons”) may contact the premises
user to discuss their objections and try to come to an agreement which will allow the
proposed licensable activities to proceed. The TEN can be modified (for example, by
changing the details of the parts of the premises that are to be used for the event, the
description of the nature of the intended activities or their duration). The other relevant
person has to agree for the modification to be made. There is no scope under the 2003
Act for the modification of a late TEN.

Applying conditions to a TEN

7.38

The 2003 Act provides that only the licensing authority can impose conditions to a TEN
from the existing conditions on the premises licence or club premises certificate at the
venue. The licensing authority can only do so:

« if the police or the EHA have objected to the TEN,;

« if that objection has not been withdrawn;

« if there is a licence or certificate in relation to at least a part of the premises in respect

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 | 53

Page 57



of which the TEN is given;

» and if the licensing authority considers it appropriate for the promotion of the
licensing objectives to impose one or more conditions.

7.39  This decision is one for the licensing authority alone, regardless of the premises user’s
views or willingness to accept conditions. The conditions must be notified to the
premises user on the form prescribed by regulations.

Duty of premises users to keep and produce TENs

7.40 Where a TEN is not prominently displayed at the premises, the police and licensing
officers have the right under sections 109(5) and (6) of the 2003 Act to request the
premises user (or relevant nominated person who has the TEN in their custody) to
produce the TEN for examination. If the police do not intervene when a TEN is given,
they will still be able to rely on their powers of closure under the Anti-social Behaviour,
Crime and Policing Act 20143,

3 For further guidance on the closure power under the 2014 Act, please refer to:
www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/352562/ASB_Guidance_v8 July2014 final_2_.pdf

54 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003

Page 58


http://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/352562/ASB_Guidance_v8_July2014_final

Public Spaces Protection Order
14.49 The Designated Public Place Order (DPPO) has been replaced by the Public Spaces

14.50

Protection Order (PSPO) in the Anti-social Behaviour Crime and Policing Act 20141,
PSPOs can be used to restrict the drinking of alcohol in a public space where this has or
is likely to have a detrimental effect on the quality of life on those in the locality, be
persistent or continuing in nature, and unreasonable. Before making a PSPO, a council
must consult the local police. DPPOs will continue to be valid for a period of three years
following commencement of the PSPO in October 2014. Once that three year period
expires, they will be treated as a PSPO and enforceable as such. Where a local
authority occupies or manages premises, or where premises are managed on its behalf,
and it licenses that place for alcohol sales, the PSPO will not apply when the licence is
being used for alcohol sales (or 30 minutes after), but the place will be subject to the
PSPO at all other times?®. This allows local authorities to promote community events
while still using a PSPO to tackle the problems of anti-social drinking.

It should be noted that when one part of a local authority seeks a premises licence of
this kind from the licensing authority, the licensing committee and its officers must
consider the matter from an entirely neutral standpoint. If relevant representations are
made, for example, by local residents or the police, they must be considered fairly by
the committee. Anyone making a representation that is genuinely aggrieved by a
positive decision in favour of a local authority application by the licensing authority
would be entitled to appeal to the magistrates’ court and thereby receive an

15 For full guidance on the PSPO please see the statutory guidance on the 2014 Act:
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/anti-social-behaviour-crime-and-policing-bill-anti-social-

behaviour
16 |icensed premises in general are exempt from the effect of a PSPO.

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 | 123

Page 59


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/anti-social-behaviour-crime-and-policing-bill-anti-social-behaviour
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/anti-social-behaviour-crime-and-policing-bill-anti-social-behaviour

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 6

Licensing Objectives

Page 8 of 35


LocalAdmin
Highlight


4.1

41.1

41.2

4.1.3

be amongst the most essential control measures for the achievement of all the licensing
objectives. For this reason these elements should be specifically considered and
addressed within the applicants operating schedule.

The Licensing Authority recommends that applicants carry out their own risk
assessments in relation to the four licensing objectives in order to assist them in deciding
whether any steps are required to be taken in order to meet those objectives.

In accordance with the Home Office Guidance to Licensing Authorities, this Authority
expects applicants to demonstrate knowledge of the area within which the licensed
premises is situated. This would include, for example, proximity to residential properties,
areas where children congregate and any risk posed to the local area by the applicant’s
proposed licensable activity.

Prevention of crime and disorder

The Licensing Authority will carry out its licensing functions with a view to promoting the
prevention of crime and disorder and will seek to ensure that licensees/certificate
holders/designated premises supervisors take measures to regulate the behaviour of
persons whilst on their premises, or in the immediate vicinity of the premises.

In addition to the requirement for the Licensing Authority to promote this licensing
objective, it also has a duty under Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to
exercise its functions with due regard to the likely effect on, and do all it reasonably can
to prevent, crime and disorder in the Borough.

When addressing crime and disorder the applicant should initially identify any particular
issues (having regard to their type of premises and/or activities) which are likely to
adversely affect the promotion of the crime and disorder objective. Such steps as are
required to deal with these identified issues should be included within the applicant’s
operating schedule.

The Licensing Authority encourages applicants to include in their operating schedule the
steps they propose to take to reduce/deter crime and disorder. These steps will vary
from premises to premises according to the type of licensable activities that are to be
carried on. Examples of measures the Licensing Authority encourage applicants to
consider and address include

o Physical security features e.g. use of toughened, polycarbonate or plastic
drinking glasses

e Procedure for risk assessment of alcohol promotions to ensure they do not
promote irresponsible drinking or potentially breach the mandatory condition on
irresponsible drinks promotions

e The use and number of Security Industry Authority (SIA) registered door
supervisors

¢ Amount of seating to be provided to reduce the risk of high volume vertical

drinking

Training given to staff in crime prevention and drug awareness measures

Measures agreed with the Police to reduce crime and disorder

Measures to prevent the use or supply of illegal drugs

Search procedures

Formalisation of a dispersal policy

Measures to prevent customers taking glasses and bottles away from the

premises

Page 9 of 35

Page 62



41.4

4.2

42.1

422

423

424

425

4.2.6

e Training given to staff to prevent the sale of alcohol to those who are under age
or appear drunk

e Measures to tackle street drinking including not selling single cans or bottles of
beer, lager and cider; not selling super strength (ABV above 6.5) beer, lager and
cider; and attaching water proof labels with printed shop names and addresses to
cans and bottles of beer, lager and cider.

CCTV remains one of the most effective measures for reducing crime and disorder. The
Licensing Authority expects premises that retail alcohol for consumption on or off the
premises will have an effective CCTV system installed that operates in compliance with
the requirements of Lincolnshire Police

The British Beer and Pub Association (BBPA) has consolidated good practice on
combating violence in licensed premises into a guide to risk assessment. This is
available on the BBPAs website: www.beerandpub.com.

Public Safety

The Licensing Authority will carry out their licensing functions with a view to promoting
public safety and will seek to ensure that licensees/certificate holders/designated
premises supervisors take measures to protect the safety of performers and persons
attending licensable activities. The risk to public safety will vary according to the type of
premises and the activities carried out.

The Licensing Authority encourages applicants to include in their operating schedules the
steps they propose to take to promote public safety.

Where an applicant identifies an issue in regard to public safety, which is not covered by
existing legislation, the applicant should identify in their operating schedule the steps
which will be taken to ensure public safety.

Depending on the individual style and characteristics of the premises and/or events the
following issues may be of relevance:

Use of equipment and effects

Levels of door supervision

Measures to prevent the supply and use of illegal drugs

Physical safety features e.g. use of toughened glass, polycarbonate and plastic
containers

Fire evacuation procedures

e Provision of CCTV (see para 7.1.3)

e Occupancy figures

It will be the responsibility of licence/certificate holders/designated premises supervisors
to ensure they have complied with all Health and Safety legislation.

Where a premise is on a vessel for which a current Passenger Ship Certificate is in force,
the public safety objective can generally be considered to be met in respect of the layout,
structure, access arrangements and operation of the vessel.

Whilst the Licensing Authority cannot require documentation regarding risk assessments
to be attached to the operating schedule, it considers such risk assessments to be good
practice. Risk assessments, including fire risk assessments, are a useful tool in the

instruction and training of staff, as well as a sound basis for review by the licence holder,

Page 10 of 35

Page 63


http://www.beerandpub.com/

4.3

43.1

4.3.2

4.3.3

434

4.3.5

in the event of needing to make an application for variation of a premises licence or in
response to changing circumstances/conditions at the premises.

Prevention of Public Nuisance

Licensed premises have a significant potential to adversely impact on communities
through public nuisances that arise from their operation. The Licensing Authority wishes
to maintain and protect the amenity of residents and other businesses from the potential
consequence of the operation of licensed premises whilst recognising the valuable
cultural, social and business importance that such premises provide.

The Licensing Authority intends to interpret “public nuisance” in its widest sense and
takes it to include such issues as noise, light, odour, litter and anti-social behaviour,

where these matters impact on those living, working or otherwise engaged in normal
activity in an area.

When addressing public nuisance the applicant should initially identify any particular
issues (having regard to their type of premises and/or activities) which are likely to
adversely affect the promotion of the objective to prevent public nuisance. Such steps as
are required to deal with these identified issues should be included within the applicant’s
operating schedule. For example, the Licensing Authority expects an applicant to identify
how public nuisance will be controlled in outside areas, particularly in smoking areas, that
are not within the boundary of the licensed area. This would include prohibiting the
consumption of alcohol.

Applicants are encouraged to demonstrate in their operating schedule that suitable and
sufficient measures have been identified and will be implemented and maintained to
prevent public nuisance, relevant to the individual style and characteristics of their
premises and events. These may include:

e The location of premises and proximity to residential and other noise sensitive
premises, such as hospitals, local businesses, hospices and places of worship

e The hours of opening, particularly between 23.00 and 07.00

e The nature of the activities to be provided, including whether those activities are
of a temporary or permanent nature and whether they are to be held inside or
outside the premises

e The design and layout of the premises and in particular the presence of noise
limiting and/or monitoring features

e The occupancy capacity of the premises (Where appropriate)

e The availability of public transport to facilitate dispersal of customers

¢ ‘wind down period’ between the end of the licensable activities and the closure of
the premises

e last admission time

e The formulation of a dispersal policy

¢ Control of nuisance from persons using outside areas and in particular smoking
areas.

The following examples of control measures are given to assist applicants who may need
to take account of them in their operating schedule, having regard to their particular type
of premises and/or activities

o Effective and responsible management of premises

e Appropriate instruction, training and supervision of those employed or engaged
to prevent incidents of public nuisance e.g. to ensure customers leave quietly

Page 11 of 35

Page 64



4.4

441

442

e Control of operating hours for all or parts (e.g. garden areas) of the premises,
including such matters as deliveries

e Adoption of best practice guidance (e.g. Good practice Guide on the Control of
Noise from Pubs and Clubs, produced by Institute of Acoustics)

¢ Installation of soundproofing, air conditioning, acoustic lobbies and sound
limitation devices

¢ Management of people, including staff and traffic (and resulting queues) arriving

and leaving premises

Liaison with public transport providers

Siting of external lighting, including security lighting

Management arrangements for collection and disposal of litter

Effective ventilation systems to prevent nuisance from odour

Undertaking noise impact assessments

Regular assessments of the noise coming from the premises when used for

regulated entertainment and steps to control the level of noise so as not to cause

disturbance to local residents.

e Regular assessment of any noise coming from outside areas, including smoking
areas, and steps to control the level of noise so as not to cause disturbance to
local residents.

o Keeping a written record of assessments in a log book kept for that purpose
including, the time and date of the checks, the person making them and the
results including any remedial action.

¢ Identifying smoking areas in operating schedules to enable responsible
authorities to appraise proposals with a view to promoting the prevention of
public nuisance licensing objective.

o Keeping external doors (except for access and egress) and windows closed
when regulated entertainment is being provided except in the event of an
emergency.

e The disposal of empty glass bottles not being undertaken externally between
23.00 hours and opening hours on the following day on every day of the week.

e Posting at exits from the premises in a place where they can be seen and easily
read by the public, notices requiring customers to leave the premises and the
area quietly and in an orderly manner.

¢ Regularly clearing outside the premises of litter associated with the operation of
the premises e.g. cigarette ends.

Protection of children from harm

The Licensing Authority recognises the great variety of premises for which licences may
be sought. These will include theatres, cinemas, restaurants, pubs, nightclubs, cafes,
takeaways, community halls and schools. Except as prohibited by law, access by children
to all types of premises will not be limited in any way unless it is considered necessary to
do so to protect them from harm. It is hoped that family friendly premises will thrive but
the risk of harm to children remains a paramount consideration when determining
applications.

The protection of children from harm includes protection of children from moral,
psychological and physical harm.

When receiving relevant representations and deciding whether to limit access to children,
other than in circumstances where the law demands their access to be limited,
applicants/licence/certificate holders should consider the activities carried on at the
premises. Examples which may give rise to concern in respect of children would include
premises;

Page 12 of 35

Page 65



4.4.3

4.4.4

4.4.5

4.4.6

4.4.7

e Where entertainment or services of an adult or sexual nature are commonly
provided;

o Where there have been convictions of members of the current staff at the
premises for serving alcohol to minors or with a reputation for underage drinking;

e With a known association with drug taking or dealing

e Where there is a strong element of gambling on the premises (but not, for
example, the simple presence of a small number of cash prize gaming machines)

Films - In the case of premises which are used for film exhibitions, conditions will be
imposed restricting access only to those who meet the required age limit in line with any
certificate granted by the British Board of Film Classification or, in specific cases, a
certificate given to the film by the Licensing Authority itself. Applicants will be expected to
explain in their operating schedule the steps they intend to take to ensure children and
young persons do not gain access to films with a restricted access classification.

Where a film is to be shown locally within the authority’s area and has not been classified
by the British Board of Film Classification, an application can be made to the Authority for
the film to be classified. Applications should be made in accordance with the guidelines
set out by the British Board of Film Classification. These guidelines can be found at:
www.bbfc.co.uk.

Theatres- In certain cases it may be necessary to impose a condition to restrict the
admission of children to theatres, which are incorporating adult entertainment in their
productions.

Where a large number of children are likely to be present on any licensed

premises and representations are received; conditions may be imposed requiring the
presence of an appropriate number of adult staff to ensure public safety and their
protection from harm. Where the Licensing Authority considers it appropriate, following
receipt of relevant representation(s) it may require the adult supervisors (being persons
over the age of 18) to be subject to a criminal record check. The onus will be on the
Premises Licence holder to ensure that staff members are suitable to carry out the
supervision of children, which may include criminal record disclosure from the Disclosure
and Barring Service (DBS).

The options available for limiting access by children would include —

e Limitations of the hours when children may be present

e Limitations or the exclusion of the presence of children under certain ages when
particular specified activities are taking place;

e Limitations on the parts of premises to which children might be given access;
Age limitations (below 18 years);
Requirements for accompanying adults (including for example, a requirement
which provide that children under a particular age must be accompanied by an
adult); and

e Full exclusion of those people under 18 years of age from the premises when
any licensable activities are taking place.

The Licensing Authority will not impose any condition that specifically requires access for
children to be provided at any premises. Where no restriction or limitation is imposed the
issue of access will remain a matter for the discretion of the individual licence
holder/certificate holder or designated premises supervisor.

Page 13 of 35

Page 66


http://www.bbfc.co.uk/

4.4.8

449

4.4.10

44.11

The body responsible for the interests of children is:
Lincolnshire Safeguarding Children Partnership

Lincolnshire Safeguarding Children Partnership can be contacted through Lincolnshire
County Council.

The reasons the Licensing Authority has chosen the above as a Responsible Authority
competent to advise it on the protection of children from harm are:

e That this body is answerable to democratically elected persons and is not
answerable to a particular vested interest group;

e That this body is responsible for the area covered by this Licensing Authority and
this policy;

e That this body is experienced in dealing with the protection of children.

In respect of premises licensed for the sale of alcohol, The Portman Group Code of
Practice on The Naming, Packaging and Promotion of Alcoholic Drinks should be
followed to ensure drinks are packaged and promoted in a socially responsible manner
and only to those who are 18 years or older.

The sale of alcohol to children and young persons under the relevant age is a criminal
offence, often resulting in harm to the children and young persons concerned and
disturbance and nuisance to local residents and businesses. Applicants should detail
adequate control measures in their operating schedule to prevent under-age sales. The
Licensing Authority recognises that Lincolnshire County Council Trading Standards
Service, as part of its responsibilities and duties under the legislation controlling the sale
of age restricted products, including alcohol, provides advice and guidance on the
controls and systems that may be adopted to help prevent such sales. Applicants are
strongly advised to contact Trading Standards for advice on this matter. The Licensing
Authority also recognises that in liaison with the Police, the Trading Standards Service
conducts covert test purchasing exercises to check compliance with the law.

Challenge 25 — The mandatory licence conditions (introduced in October 2014) require
relevant premises to hold an age verification policy in relation to the sale or supply of
alcohol. The Licensing Authority supports the adoption of the Challenge 25 Schemes (or
similar scheme) for licensed premises.

A suitable proof of age policy adopted by a licence holder should require the production
of a photo-driving licence or passport before sale or entry into the premises. For added
security, licence holders are encouraged to consider use of the Proof of Age Standards
Scheme (PASS) and accept cards showing the PASS logo.

Where licence holders wish to employ children they should ensure that the legislation
regarding this matter is complied with and any necessary permits to work have been
obtained. Further information on the requirements of this legislation is available from the
Lincolnshire Safeguarding Children Board.

Page 14 of 35

Page 67


LocalAdmin_1
Highlight


12

121

12.2

Temporary Event Notices

Where there is an event with less than 500 attendees at any one time, including staff,
which involves licensable activities for a period of up to 168 hours, premises users may
serve a Temporary Event Notice.

Temporary Event organisers are encouraged to submit their notifications to the Licensing

Authority as soon as is reasonably practicable in order for the Police and Environmental
Health to consider whether or not there are any concerns and where there are concerns,

Page 18 of 35

Page 68


LocalAdmin_2
Highlight


12.3

permitted to submit a limited number of late TENs between 5 and 9 working days before
and event. Working days do not include the day of service of the notice, the day of the
event, Saturdays, Sundays or Bank holidays. Where less than 5 working days notice is
given, or 10 working days if the number of permitted late TENs has been reached, the
notice WILL NOT be accepted. Provision of licensable activities except in accordance
with the Licensing Act is an offence.

It should be noted that the Police and the Borough’s Environmental Health (Pollution) are
the only bodies who may make representations to a TEN. However, these two bodies
may only object to a TEN on the grounds that one or more of the licensing objectives
would not be promoted should the event go ahead. Where objections are received to a
late TEN the notice will, as required under the provisions of the Act, be rejected. Where
objections are received to a standard TEN the matter will heard by a Licensing Sub-
Committee. The Sub-Committee may:

e Allow the TEN to go ahead

e Rejectthe TEN

o |f the premises where the TEN is proposed to take place already has a premises
licence the Sub-Committee may allow the TEN but impose some, or all, of the
conditions on the premises licence onto the TEN if appropriate to do so for the

promotion of the licensing objectives.

Licensing legislation allows event organisers to submit up to 10 Late TENs per year if
they hold a personal licence and 2 late TENSs if they do not hold a personal licence.

Page 19 of 35

Page 69


LocalAdmin_3
Highlight


This page is intentionally left blank



Status: This is the original version (as it was originally enacted).

APPENDIX 7

Equality Act 2010

2010 CHAPTER 15

PART 11

ADVANCEMENT OF EQUALITY

CHAPTER 1

PUBLIC SECTOR EQUALITY DUTY

149 Public sector equality duty

(1) A public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the need
to—
(a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that
is prohibited by or under this Act;
(b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it;

(c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and persons who do not share it.

(2) A person who is not a public authority but who exercises public functions must, in the
exercise of those functions, have due regard to the matters mentioned in subsection (1).

(3) Having due regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity between persons
who share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it involves
having due regard, in particular, to the need to—

(a) remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic that are connected to that characteristic;

(b) take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic that are different from the needs of persons who do not share it;

(c) encourage persons who share a relevant protected characteristic to participate
in public life or in any other activity in which participation by such persons
is disproportionately low.

Page 71



Equality Act 2010 (c. 15)

Part 11 — Advancement of equality
Chapter 1 — Public sector equality duty
Document Generated: 2021-06-08

Status: This is the original version (as it was originally enacted).

150

151

(4) The steps involved in meeting the needs of disabled persons that are different from
the needs of persons who are not disabled include, in particular, steps to take account
of disabled persons’ disabilities.

(5) Having due regard to the need to foster good relations between persons who share a
relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it involves having due
regard, in particular, to the need to—

(a) tackle prejudice, and
(b) promote understanding.

(6) Compliance with the duties in this section may involve treating some persons more
favourably than others; but that is not to be taken as permitting conduct that would
otherwise be prohibited by or under this Act.

(7) The relevant protected characteristics are—
age;
disability;
gender reassignment;
pregnancy and maternity;
race;
religion or belief;
sex;
sexual orientation.

(8) A reference to conduct that is prohibited by or under this Act includes a reference to—
(a) abreach of an equality clause or rule;
(b) abreach of a non-discrimination rule.

(9) Schedule 18 (exceptions) has effect.

Public authorities and public functions
(1) A public authority is a person who is specified in Schedule 19.

(2) In that Schedule—
Part 1 specifies public authorities generally;
Part 2 specifies relevant Welsh authorities;
Part 3 specifies relevant Scottish authorities.

(3) A public authority specified in Schedule 19 is subject to the duty imposed by
section 149(1) in relation to the exercise of all of its functions unless subsection (4)
applies.

(4) A public authority specified in that Schedule in respect of certain specified functions
is subject to that duty only in respect of the exercise of those functions.

(5) A public function is a function that is a function of a public nature for the purposes
of the Human Rights Act 1998.

Power to specify public authorities

(1) A Minister of the Crown may by order amend Part 1, 2 or 3 of Schedule 19.

Page 72



	Agenda
	1 Star Market, 5-9 New Street, Boston
	Appendix 1 - Location Plan
	Appendix 2 - PSPO
	Appendix 3 A&B - Temporary Event Notices - PUBLIC
	Appendix 4 A&B - Objection Notices - PUBLIC
	Appendix 5 - Section 182 extracts
	Appendix 6 - Licensing Policy
	Appendix 7 - Equality Act




